
March 12, 2020

RE: Suite 0409D  Unit 20 Level 4 of 
York Condominium Corporation No. 300

Dear Sir or Madam:

As requested, we are pleased to provide a status certificate for the above-noted unit along with 
other documents pertaining to the condominium corporation.

To ensure the highest standard of accuracy in the keeping of ownership records we encourage 
new owners to have their solicitor directly provide the corporation with a copy of page 1 of the 
Transfer Deed, which will detail all dwelling, parking and locker unit information as applicable. All 
correspondence to the Corporation is to be delivered by hand or by mail to York Condominium 
Corporation No. 300, c/o Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd., 50 and 60 Inverlochy Blvd, 
Thornhill, ON  L3T 4T7/4T6 or by email to ycc300@rogers.com.

In accordance with current legislation, a person, upon becoming an owner in a corporation is 
required within 30 days to give written notice to the corporation of their:

 Name
 Unit Number
 Address for Service (mailing address)

If the address for service is not in the Province of Ontario then the address for service will be that 
of the unit in the condominium corporation. 

Until and unless such notification is provided to the Corporation, its records shall remain in the 
name of the present owner as prescribed under the Condominium Act, 1998 and the new owner 
will not receive notices of any meetings and other written communication from the Corporation.

We inform you that maintenance fees on a unit are due on the first day of each month.  
Maintenance fees may be paid by pre-authorized fund transfer (PAFT).  Please complete the 
enclosed PAFT form and return to the management office at the above-noted address for service.  

If the unit is intended to serve as a rental property then please ensure that the enclosed Summary 
of Lease or Renewal is completed and returned to the management office. 

You are welcome to contact the condominium manager at (905)881-3368 with any questions.

Yours very truly,

Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd.

Property Manager

Enclosures

Mike Encutu

                                             



STATUS CERTIFICATE
(UNDER SUBSECTION 76 (1) OF THE CONDOMINIUM ACT, 1998)

York Condominium Corporation No. 300 (known as the “Corporation”) certifies that as of the 
date of this certificate:  

General Information Concerning the Corporation

1. Mailing address: YCC 300 - 50 / 60 Inverlochy
c/o Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd.
50 and 60 Inverlochy Blvd
Thornhill, ON  L3T 4T7/4T6

2. Address for service: same as above

3. Property manager: Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd.
111 Gordon Baker Road
Suite 700
North York, ON  M2H 3R1

   
      On-Site Property Manager: Mike Encutu, (905)881-3368                                                             

4. The directors and officers of the Corporation are:

Name Position Address for Service Telephone Number
Farida Purcell Director Same Above (905)881-3368
Matthew Marcus Levy Director Same Above (905)881-3368
Penny Spence President Same Above (905)881-3368
Doreen Rotenberg Secretary Same Above (905)881-3368
David Wall Treasurer Same Above (905)881-3368
Ron Wahl Vice President Same Above (905)881-3368

Common Expenses

5. The owner of Suite 0409D  Unit 20 Level 4 at 60 Inverlochy Blvd, Thornhill, ON L3T 4T7 of 
York Condominium Corporation No. 300, registered in the Land Registry Office for the Land 
Titles Division of Toronto is in default in the payment of common expenses in the amount of $ 
0.
OR 
 [If applicable add: 
 and a certificate of lien has been registered against
(if the Corporation is any condominium corporation but a common elements
condominium corporation: the unit)

6. A payment on account for the unit for Cable/Internet/Satellite TV - Income charges of $45.55 
plus Common Expense Contribution charges of $814.31 plus Cable/Internet/Satellite TV - 
Income charges of $39.55 for a total fee of $899.41 is due on 01 Apr 2020 for the period 01 Apr 



2020 to 30 Apr 2020.  This amount includes the amount of any increase since the date of the 
budget of the Corporation for the current fiscal year as described in paragraph 10.

7. The Corporation has the amount of $0  in prepaid common expenses for the unit.

8. There are no amounts that the Condominium Act, 1998 requires to be added to the common 
expenses payable for the unit.

Budget

9. The Corporation is presently meeting its obligations as and when they become due and is not 
presently considering any increase in the common expenses until the next fiscal period.  To this 
extent, the current budget is accurate, however, the Corporation may not accurately determine 
whether the budget will result in a surplus or a deficit at this time as the Corporation has no 
control over any unannounced increases in utility rates, labour and material costs and any 
other similar factors which are beyond normal budgetary controls.  A surplus or a deficit is 
undetermined at this time. 

10. Since the date of the budget of the Corporation for the current fiscal year, the common 
expenses for the unit have not been increased.

11. Since the date of the budget of the Corporation for the current fiscal year, the board has not 
levied any assessments against the unit to increase the contribution to the reserve fund or the 
Corporation’s operating fund or for any other purpose.

12. The Corporation has no knowledge of any circumstances that may result in an increase 
in the common expenses for the unit(s) except: We’ve learned that our insurance 
premiums and/or deductibles may increase beyond inflation in the next fiscal year(s).  If 
so, this could result in an increase in common expenses (beyond inflation).

Reserve Fund

13. The Corporation’s reserve fund amounts to $ 544,112.82 (unaudited) as of January 31, 2020.

14. The most recent Reserve Fund Study conducted by the Board is a Class 2 –  Reserve Fund 
Study update with site visit, dated October 03, 2018 and has been prepared by Stephenson 
Engineering Limited.  The next reserve fund study will be conducted before January 01, 2022.

15.  N/A

16. The board has sent to the owners a notice dated October 03, 2018 containing a summary of 
the reserve fund study, a summary of the proposed plan for future funding of the reserve fund 
and a statement indicating the areas, if any, in which the proposed plan differs from the study. 
The proposed plan for future funding was implemented January 01, 2019 and the total 
contribution each year to the reserve fund is being made as set out in the Contribution Table 
included in the Notice.

17. There are no plans to increase the reserve fund under a plan proposed by the board under 
subsection 94 (8) of the Condominium Act, 1998, for the future funding of the reserve fund, 



except for the increased annual contributions to the reserve fund as indicated in the attached 
Notice of Futures Funding of the Reserve Fund.

Legal Proceedings, Claims

18. A statement of claim filed against the Corporation by a resident seeking to recover damages 
arising from a slip and fall.  The claim is being defended and has been turned over to the 
Corporation’s insurance company. 

19. The Corporation is not a party to any proceeding before a court of law, an arbitrator or an 
administrative tribunal.

20. The Corporation has not received a notice of or made an application under section 109 of the 
Condominium Act, 1998 to the Superior Court of Justice for an order to amend the declaration 
and description, where the court has not made the order.

21. The Corporation has no outstanding claim for payment out of the guarantee fund under the 
Ontario New Home Warranties Plan Act.

22. There is currently no order of the Superior Court of Justice in effect appointing an inspector 
under section 130 of the Condominium Act, 1998 or an administrator under section 131 of the 
Condominium Act, 1998.

Agreements with owners relating to changes to the common elements

23. The unit is not subject to any agreement under clause 98 (1) (b) of the Condominium Act, 1998 
or section 24.6 of Ontario Regulation 48/01 (General) made under the Condominium Act, 1998 
relating to additions, alterations or improvements made to the common elements by the unit 
owner.

OR
The unit is subject to one or more agreements under clause 98 (1) (b) of the Condominium 
Act, 1998 relating to additions, alterations or improvements made to the common elements by 
the unit owner.  To the best of the Corporation’s information, knowledge and belief, the 
agreements have been complied with by the parties. 

Leasing of Units

24. The Corporation has not received notice under section 83 of the Condominium Act, 1998, that 
any unit was leased during the fiscal year preceding the date of this status certificate.
OR
The Corporation has received notice under section 83 of the Condominium Act, 1998, that 26 
units were leased during the fiscal year preceding the date of this status certificate.

Substantial changes to the common elements, assets or services

25. There are no additions, alterations or improvements to the common elements, changes in the 
assets of the Corporation or changes in a service of the Corporation that are substantial and 
that the board has proposed but has not implemented, and there are no proposed installations 
of an electric vehicle charging system to be carried out in accordance with subsection 24.3 (5) 
of Ontario Regulation 48/01 (General) made under the Condominium Act, 1998



Insurance

26. The corporation has secured all policies of insurance that are required under the Condominium 
Act, 1998. Each unit owner is advised to carefully review the enclosed Certificate of 
Insurance, including the extent of any deductibles, and to become familiar with and to 
understand that each unit owner is responsible for insuring any contents in and 
improvements to their individual units. As well each unit owner insurance policy should also 
include personal third-party liability insurance, reimbursement for living expenses outside of 
your unit and protection against any deductible charges that might accrue to the unit 
owner from the Condominium Corporation.  The Corporation shall insure the units 
(excluding contents and improvements) with reference to the standard unit by-law or 
standard unit schedule of the Corporation and the common elements for full replacement 
cost without deduction for depreciation.

Phased condominium corporations

27-32. These clauses deal with Phased, Common Element, Vacant and Leasehold Condominium 
Corporations and do not apply to this Standard Condominium Corporation.

Attachments

33. The following documents are attached to this Status Certificate and form part of it. 
(a) a copy of the current declaration, by-laws and rules, (if applicable, add:  which include an 

occupancy standards by-law);

(b) a copy of the budget of the Corporation for the current fiscal year, its last annual audited 
financial statements and the auditor’s report on the statements;

(c) a list of all current agreements mentioned in section 111, 112 or 113 of the Condominium 
Act, 1998 and all current agreements between the Corporation and another corporation or 
between the Corporation and the owner of the unit;

(d) a certificate or memorandum of insurance for each of the current insurance policies.

[if applicable add the following items:
(e) a copy of all applications made under section 109 of the Condominium Act, 1998 to amend 

the declaration or description for which the court has not made an order;

(f) a copy of the schedule that the declarant has delivered to the board setting out what 
constitutes a standard unit, if there is no by-law of the Corporation establishing what 
constitutes a standard unit;

(g) a copy of all agreements, if any, described in clause 98 (1) (b) of the Condominium Act, 
1998 that bind the unit;

(h) a copy of a notice dated October 03, 2018 containing a summary of the reserve fund study, 
a summary of the proposed plan for future funding of the reserve fund and a statement 
indicating the areas, if any, in which the proposed plan differs from the study;



(i) a copy of an order appointing an inspector under section 130 of the Condominium Act, 
1998 or an administrator under section 131 of the Condominium Act, 1998;

(j) a copy of the disclosure statement that the Corporation has received from the declarant 
under subsection 147 (5) of the Condominium Act, 1998 with respect to the phase that 
contains the unit unless the declarant has completed all phases described in the disclosure 
statement and the declarant does not own any of the units in the phases except for the part 
of the property designed to control, facilitate or provide telecommunications to, from or 
within the property;

(k) a copy of an application by the lessor for a termination order under section 173 of the 
Condominium Act, 1998;

(l) if the leasehold interests in the units of the Corporation have been renewed and an 
amendment to the declaration has not yet been registered under subsection 174 (8) of the 
Condominium Act, 1998, a copy of the provisions that apply upon renewal.]

Rights of person requesting certificate

34. The person requesting this certificate has the following rights under subsections 76 (7) and (8) 
of the Condominium Act, 1998 with respect to the agreements listed in subparagraph 33 (c) 
above:

1. Upon receiving a written request and reasonable notice, the Corporation shall permit a 
person who has requested a status certificate and paid the fee charged by the 
Corporation for the certificate, or an agent of the person duly authorized in writing, to 
examine the agreements listed in subparagraph 33 (c) at a reasonable time and at a 
reasonable location.

2. The Corporation shall, within a reasonable time, provide copies of the agreements to a 
person examining them, if the person so requests and pays a reasonable fee to 
compensate the Corporation for the labour and copying charges.

Other

A. There are restrictions set forth in the declaration and the rules governing tenancies and the 
keeping of pets within the building(s) or ground(s). Unit purchasers are urged to review, in 
particular, these restrictions prior to taking occupancy (directly or by a tenant) of the unit.

B. As a matter of personal safety, please be advised that:

a) Under the Ontario Fire Code, the "owner" is responsible for ensuring that SMOKE 
ALARMS are installed in their dwelling unit.  The Ontario Fire Code requires that SMOKE 
ALARMS be maintained in operating condition at all times.

b) Many municipalities have enacted a BY-LAW requiring the installation and maintenance of 
CARBON MONOXIDE DETECTORS by the "owner" under the authority of Section 102 of 
the Municipal Act R.S.O. 1990, c.M.45.  Please ensure that you comply with the local BY-
LAW within your municipality.

C. Two proximity cards have been allocated for the lobby entrances.  These cards must be 
transferred by the vendor to the purchaser on closing of the sale.



D. Owners are not permitted to make structural alterations in-suite without first obtaining prior written 
approval from the Board of Directors.  Guidelines for kitchen/bathroom/general renovations must 
be strictly adhered to.  Wall-to-wall carpeting may ONLY be replaced by the type of hardwood 
covering approved by the Corporation prior to installation.  No alterations or additions are 
permitted to or on the common elements pursuant to the Condominium Act.  Balconies may be 
painted with "YCC 300 – GREY" ONLY (see Management Office).  The use of barbeques on 
balconies and patios is not permitted.  No propane gas may be stored on, or transported through, 
the premises by order by the Fire Marshall.

E. The parking spaces are part of the common element and are, therefore, not owned by individual 
owners.

 
This Status Certificate is valid subject to all outstanding cheques/payments for this unit clearing the 
bank.

Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd.
Agent acting on behalf of:
York Condominium Corporation No. 300

 *                 
   Date                                    

Authorized Signing Officer
I have the authority to bind the Corporation

 *
   Date                                    

Authorized Signing Officer
I have the authority to bind the Corporation

* Executed pursuant to the Electronic Commerce Act (Ontario)

Mike Encutu

Paulo Tavares

                                   

March 12, 2020

                                   

March 12, 2020



THORNHILL ORCHARDS 
York Condominium Corporation NO. 300 

 
50 & 60 Inverlochy Blvd, Thornhill, Ontario L3T 4T6 

Phone: 905-881-3368 Fax: 905-881-3753 Email: ycc300@rogers.com 
 

 

   

 

MAJOR RESERVE FUND PROJECTS COMPLETED  

UP TO DECEMBER 31, 2018 

 

 
YCC 300 spent a total of $2,439,523 during 2018 from the Reserve Fund which 
started the year January 1, 2018 at $2,006,883 and closed the year December 

31, 2018 at $662,370 as a result of the following: 
 

 
Major Reserve Fund Projects Completed in 2017-2018: 
 
Garage Podium Column Reinforcement and 
Platform and Membrane Replacement:    2017 - 2018  
 
HVAC Upgrades and Replacements:       2018 
 
Front Entrance Windows and Doors:       2018 
  
Corridor Landing Renovation:       2018  

 
Elevator Cab Renovations:       2018   
 
2018 Lobby and Lounge Renovation Project:    2018 - 2019  
    
 
NOTE: 
For a condominium the size of YCC 300, our Reserve Fund at $662,370 may appear low at 
first review. However, as set out in the above detailed list, the major projects fully 
planned, executed and expensed during 2018 have resulted in the decrease of the Reserve 
Fund.  
 
With these and other large projects listed below, our two YCC Buildings are now 
structurally enhanced and fully renovated. The present Reserve Funding level is more than 
adequate to meet all future obligations in accordance with the Engineering Reserve Fund 
Study, without any consideration for special assessment.  
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THORNHILL ORCHARDS 
York Condominium Corporation NO. 300 

 
50 & 60 Inverlochy Blvd, Thornhill, Ontario L3T 4T6 

Phone: 905-881-3368 Fax: 905-881-3753 Email: ycc300@rogers.com 
 

 

 
 
 
 
Major Reserve Fund Projects Completed Prior to January 01, 2018: 

 
Tri-Sorter:          2017 
 
External and Internal LED Lighting Retrofit:     2016 - 2017 
 
Cold Water Risers Relining:         2015 
 
 Window Replacements:       2012 - 2013 
 
Corridor Renovations:      2010 - 2011 
 
Elevator Operational Modernization:       2009 
 
Replacement of Chillers:        2006 
 
Replacement of Garage Membrane and Ramp:     1993 
 
Balcony Door Replacement:  367 of 381 replaced over 10 years 
    14 remained to be replaced in 2019 - $30,000 
  
All information is for two buildings, 50 and 60 Inverlochy. 
 
February 14, 2019 
Board of Directors 
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YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 300 

 

INDEX OF CONDOMINIUM DOCUMENTS 

 

 

DECLARATION  

 

1. DECLARATION - REGISTERED DECEMBER 23, 1976 

 

2. AMENDMENT TO THE DECLARATION DATED AUGUST 19, 1980 

 

 

BY-LAWS 

 

(BY-LAWS 1, 2, 4, 5 AND 7 WERE REPEALED WHEN BY-LAW 8 WAS 

REGISTERED.) 

 

3. BY-LAW 3 – INSURANCE TRUSTEE - DECEMBER 1976 (CANCELLED ON 

PROCLAMATION OF THE CONDOMINIUM ACT, 1998) 

 

4. BY-LAW 6 - OCCUPANCY – SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE – JUNE, 1987 

 

5. BY-LAW 8 – GENERAL BY-LAW – MAY, 2006 

 

6. BY-LAW 9 – MEDIATION BY-LAW – MAY, 2006 

 

7. BY-LAW 10 – BORROWING BY-LAW – NOVEMBER, 2006 

 

8. BY-LAW 11 – STANDARD UNIT – NOVEMBER, 2008 

 

9.  BY-LAW 12 – BULK INTERNET AGREEMENT- MARCH, 2019 

 

 

RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 

9. RULES AND REGULATIONS – CORPORATION -  May 20, 2018 

 

 

SHARED FACILITIES 

 

10. SHARED FACILITIES AGREEMENT – NOVEMBER, 1977 

 

11. RULES AND REGULATIONS – ORCHARD CLUB – OCTOBER 2007 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Owners of
York Condominium Corporation No. 300

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of York Condominium Corporation No. 300 which comprise the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the statements of revenue and expenses, operating fund,
contingency fund, capital asset fund, reserve fund for major repairs and replacements and cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of York
Condominium Corporation No. 300 as at December 31, 2018 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report.  We are independent of the corporation in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the corporation's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the corporation or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the corporation's financial reporting process.

2.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

corporation’s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may

cast significant doubt on the corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures

in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.  Our conclusions are

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.  However, future events or

conditions may cause the corporation to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit. 

March 14, 2019 YalePGC, LLP
Richmond Hill, Ontario Chartered Professional Accountants

Licensed Public Accountants

3.



YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 300

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017

ASSETS

OPERATING
  Cash $ 408,906 $ 277,679
  Accounts receivable

Unit owners 25 181
Due from The Orchard Club - 4

  Equity in The Orchard Club (note 10) 8,326 8,408
  Prepaid expenses - 45,263

417,257 331,535

RESERVE
  Cash 698,714 2,252,188

CAPITAL ASSET (note 5) 63,165 63,165

$ 1,179,136 $ 2,646,888

See accompanying notes. 4.



YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 300

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017

LIABILITIES

OPERATING
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 182,553 $ 161,351

RESERVE
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 65,574 187,304

248,127 348,655

FUND BALANCES

CONTINGENCY FUND (note 2) 232,708 168,186

CAPITAL ASSET FUND 63,165 63,165

RESERVE FUND FOR MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS 635,136 2,066,882

931,009 2,298,233

$ 1,179,136 $ 2,646,888

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

_____________________________ Director

_____________________________ Director

See accompanying notes. 5.



YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 300

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2018 2017
BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL

REVENUE
  Common element assessments $ 2,680,550 $ 2,680,540 $ 2,615,114
  Cable assessments 142,289 143,248 131,939

2,822,839 2,823,788 2,747,053
  Less:  Budgeted transfer to reserve fund for

major repairs and replacements (1,007,652) (1,007,652) (987,900)
             Budgeted transfer to contingency fund (40,000) (40,000) -

1,775,187 1,776,136 1,759,153
  Other income 25,382 25,965 23,404

1,800,569 1,802,101 1,782,557

EXPENSES - see Schedule
  Service and maintenance contracts 658,357 656,357 617,586
  Repairs and maintenance 184,680 259,293 203,683
  On-site personnel 64,572 63,953 63,417
  Utilities 671,662 580,657 592,503
  Administrative 91,098 87,033 75,560
  Shared Facilities (note 10) 130,200 130,286 166,822

1,800,569 1,777,579 1,719,571

EXCESS  OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES $ - $ 24,522 $ 62,986

See accompanying notes. 6.



YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 300

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2018 2017
BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL

SERVICE AND MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS
  Air conditioning and heating $ 53,211 $ 49,294 $ 51,227
  Cable 142,289 141,226 131,750
  Cleaning 118,486 117,284 105,475
  Elevators 19,260 19,263 18,702
  Fire alarm monitoring and protection 9,885 9,867 12,236
  Landscaping and snow removal 30,665 31,019 31,019
  Management fees 158,597 165,745 154,801
  Odour control 3,600 3,467 3,334
  Pest control 2,400 1,372 1,413
  Security 119,964 117,820 107,629

658,357 656,357 617,586

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
  Air conditioning and heating 28,400 27,647 25,619
  Cleaning supplies 2,100 3,762 2,567
  Electrical 7,200 7,212 10,482
  Elevator 1,200 3,192 -
  Fire equipment 4,400 8,087 3,658
  Garage 8,100 4,252 9,887
  General building repairs 80,480 144,617 82,381
  Landscaping and snow removal 21,300 21,904 20,483
  Locks and doors 3,000 5,302 3,708
  Plumbing 20,000 23,385 35,020
  Windows 8,500 9,933 9,878

184,680 259,293 203,683

ON-SITE PERSONNEL
  Superintendent contract and wages 54,852 54,217 53,946
  Superintendent's suite assessments and realty taxes 9,720 9,736 9,471

  $ 64,572 $ 63,953 $ 63,417

See accompanying notes. 7.



YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 300

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2018 2017
BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL

UTILITIES
  Gas $ 132,312 $ 122,593 $ 121,817
  Hydro 306,944 253,886 293,908
  Water 232,406 204,178 176,778

671,662 580,657 592,503

ADMINISTRATIVE
  Audit fees 4,800 4,859 4,746
  Bank charges, loan interest and loan repayments 600 617 633
  Consulting 1,200 - -
  Dues and subscriptions 500 - 463
  Insurance 48,720 46,459 50,495
  Legal 8,000 10,428 2,619
  Office and general 22,298 16,905 12,132
  Telephone and communications 4,980 7,765 4,472

$ 91,098 $ 87,033 $ 75,560

See accompanying notes. 8.



YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 300

STATEMENT OF OPERATING FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017

BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ - $ -

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 24,522 62,986

TRANSFER TO CONTINGENCY FUND (24,522) (62,986)

BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ - $ -

STATEMENT OF CONTINGENCY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017

BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 168,186 $ 189,184

BUDGETED TRANSFER FROM OPERATING FUND 40,000 -

TRANSFER FROM OPERATING FUND 24,522 62,986

232,708 252,170

CHARGES DURING THE YEAR
  Installation of trisorter - 47,485
  Garbage room refurbishments - 27,719
  Flood restoration services - 8,780

- 83,984

BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 232,708 $ 168,186

See accompanying notes. 9.



YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 300

STATEMENT OF CAPITAL ASSET FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017

BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 63,165 $ 63,165

BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 63,165 $ 63,165

See accompanying notes. 10.



YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 300

STATEMENT OF RESERVE FUND FOR MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017

BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 2,066,882 $ 1,847,276

BUDGETED TRANSFER FROM OPERATING FUND 1,007,652 987,900

TRANSFER TO THE ORCHARD CLUB RESERVE FUND (48,938) (47,513)

INTEREST EARNED 27,359 24,089

3,052,955 2,811,752

CHARGES TO THE FUND
  Garage repairs 1,069,088 263,795
  Lobby refurbishments 519,495 -
  Replacement of tiles 187,670 -
  Replacement of garage exhaust fans 156,550 -
  Replacement of lobby windows and doors 108,390 -
  Consulting on reserve fund projects 101,537 60,427
  Elevator modernization 84,044 -
  Fancoil unit repairs and replacements 54,049 -
  Generator transfer switch repairs and replacements 41,917 -
  Balcony repairs 30,499 116,831
  Repair and replacement of doors, patio doors and screens 20,580 24,318
  Replacement of cast iron pipes and drain repairs 10,086 38,453
  General repairs and replacements 5,976 5,092
  Corridor repairs 5,632 7,673
  Reserve fund study 5,085 -
  Replacement of drain covers 4,972 -
  Replacement of pool table 4,339 -
  Plumbing repairs 4,294 27,290
  Security system replacement 3,616 54,880
  Lighting retrofit - 87,875
  Replacement of trisorter system - 35,708
  Replacement of carpet - 8,814
  Stairs repairs and replacements - 7,554
  Chiller repairs and cooling tower part replacements - 6,160

2,417,819 744,870

BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 635,136 $ 2,066,882

See accompanying notes. 11.



YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 300

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING AND RESERVE ACTIVITIES
  Excess of revenue over expenses $ 24,522 $ 62,986
  Transfer to contingency fund (24,522) (62,986)
  Net change in non-cash working capital
     Accounts receivable 160 2,341
     Equity in The Orchard Club 82 30,951
     Deposit - 31,640
     Prepaid expenses 45,263 (42,815)
     Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (100,528) 179,431
  

Cash flows (used in) provided by operating and reserve activities (55,023) 201,548

CASH FLOWS FROM CONTINGENCY FUND ACTIVITIES
  Transfer from operating fund 24,522 62,986
  Budgeted transfer from operating fund 40,000 -
  Charges to contingency fund - (83,984)

Cash flows provided by (used in) contingency fund activities 64,522 (20,998)

CASH FLOWS FROM RESERVE FUND ACTIVITIES
  Budgeted transfer from operating fund 1,007,652 987,900
  Interest earned on reserve funds 27,359 24,089
  Transfer to The Orchard Club reserve fund (48,938) (47,513)
  Charges to reserve fund (2,417,819) (744,870)

Cash flows (used in) provided by reserve fund activities (1,431,746) 219,606

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH RESOURCES (1,422,247) 400,156

CASH RESOURCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,529,867 2,129,711

CASH RESOURCES, END OF YEAR $ 1,107,620 $ 2,529,867

Represented by:
  Cash

Operating fund $ 408,906 $ 277,679
Reserve fund 698,714 2,252,188

$ 1,107,620 $ 2,529,867

See accompanying notes. 12.



YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 300

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE 1 OPERATIONS

The corporation was incorporated without share capital on December 31, 1976 under the
Condominium Act of Ontario and is a non-profit organization that is exempt from taxes under the
Income Tax Act. 

The purpose of the corporation is to manage and maintain the common elements (as defined in
the corporation's Declaration and By-laws)  and to provide common services for the benefit of the
owners of the 277 units of the high-rise residential buildings located at 50 and 60 Inverlochy
Boulevard, Thornhill, Ontario.

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting
standards for not-for-profit organizations. The significant policies are:

Common elements

The common elements of the corporation are owned proportionately by the unit owners and,
consequently, are not reflected as assets in these financial statements.

Contingency fund

The corporation, at its discretion, has established a fund for financing future unbudgeted
expenditures.  There are no restrictions on the use of these funds. 

Reserve fund for major repairs and replacements

The corporation, as required by the Condominium Act of Ontario, has established a reserve fund
for financing major repairs and replacements of the common elements.  Charges to the fund
require approval by the Board of Directors.  Only major repairs and replacements of the common
elements are charged directly to this reserve.

Minor repairs and replacements are charged to repairs and maintenance in the general operations.

Revenue recognition

Owners assessments are recognized as revenue monthly based on the budget distributed to the
owners each year. Interest and other revenues are recognized as revenue of the related fund
when earned.

13.



YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 300

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Contributed services

Directors, committee members and owners volunteer their time to assist in the corporation's
activities. These services materially benefit the corporation, however a reasonable estimate of the
time spent and its fair market value cannot be made and accordingly, these contributed services
are not recognized in the financial statements.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations, requires management and directors to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of asset increases and
decreases during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The corporation's financial instruments primarily consist of cash, receivables, accounts payable
and accrued liabilities. 

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of potential loss caused by fluctuations in fair value of future cash flow
of financial instruments due to changes in market interest rates. The corporation is exposed to this
risk when it invests in interest bearing securities and loans. The corporation manages this risk by
investing in fixed-rate securities of short and medium term maturity and plans to hold the securities
to maturity as well as entering into fixed-rate loans.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential for financial loss should a counter-party in a transaction fail to meet its
obligations. The corporation places its operating and reserve cash and investments with high
quality institutions and believes its exposure is not significant. The corporation's credit risk from
owners' assessments receivable is also not significant given the ability of the corporation to place
a lien on a unit for outstanding fees and limited financial exposure in a multi-unit condominium.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the corporation will not be able to meet its obligations as they become
due. The corporation manages this risk by establishing budgets and funding plans and by levying
sufficient owners' assessments to fund its operating expenses, debt payments and necessary
contributions to the reserve and other funds.

14.



YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 300

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE 4 BUDGET FIGURES

The 2018 budget figures as presented are for information purposes only and are not covered by
the audit report of Yale PGC, LLP dated March 14, 2019.

NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSET

The capital asset of the corporation consists of the superintendent's suite which is recorded at
cost. No amortization is taken as the residual value of this asset would not be less than the original
cost.

NOTE 6 RESERVE FUND STUDY

The directors of the corporation have used a class 2 reserve fund study dated October 3, 2018
prepared by Stephenson Engineering Limited and such other information available to them in
evaluating the adequacy of the annual contributions to the reserve fund. The corporation's plan for
contribution to the reserve fund for 2018 was $1,007,652 and the plan for expenditures for 2018
was $2,253,051. The study projected a reserve fund balance on December 31, 2018 of $899,814.

The reserve is evaluated on the basis of expected repair and replacement costs and the life
expectancy of the common elements and assets of the corporation. Such evaluation is based on
numerous assumptions as to future events.

NOTE 7 LEGAL ACTION

A statement of claim has been filed against the corporation by a unit owner seeking damages
arising from a slip and fall. The claim is being defended and has been submitted to the
corporation's insurance company. At this time, it is unknown whether the condominium will be
required to pay any amount in regards to this action.

NOTE 8 COMMITMENT

The corporation has entered into a contract with Trigrand Inc. for the lobby and lounge renovations
for a total contract price of $425,332 (including H.S.T.). As at December 31, 2018, $359,498 has
been charged to the reserve fund and the remainder will be charged as the work is completed.

NOTE 9 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A member of the Board of Directors of the corporation is the managing general partner of the
company which provides the annual maintenance and repairs to the in-suite fan coil heaters and
air conditioning units. During the year, the corporation paid $37,712 to this company for the fan coil
maintenance and replacement of thermostats and motors. The Director declared the conflict of
interest and left the board meeting when this contract was discussed and approved.

15.



YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 300

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE 10 THE ORCHARD CLUB

The Orchard Club is owned by three condominium corporations which share costs in the following
percentages:

York Condominium Corporation No. 97   25%
York Condominium Corporation No. 166   25%
York Condominium Corporation No. 300   50%

100%

The only charges shown as expenses for The Orchard Club are as follows:

Operating Expenses
January 2018 - December 2018 $ 130,204
Add: Share of operating deficit
  for the year ended December 31, 2018 82

$ 130,286

As of December 31, 2018, the contingency fund for The Orchard Club was $16,652. This
corporation's share of these funds is $8,326. 

These financial statements do not include the revenue and expenses of The Orchard Club as it is
a separate reporting entity and should be referred to when reading these financial statements.

NOTE 11 FUNDING OF THE RESERVE FUND FOR MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS

As at December 31, 2018, the corporation had not transferred $1,996 from the operating fund
bank account to the reserve fund bank account, as required by the Condominium Act of Ontario. 

16.



York Condominium Corporation NO. 300
50/60 Inverlochy Blvd.

Thornhill, Ontario
L3T 4T6

SCHEDULE OF AGREEMENTS

Service Supplier

SECTION 111

Property Management Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd.

SECTION 112

Cable TV Rogers Cable Systems
Internet Rogers 
Elevator Quality Allied Elevator
Emergency Generator Total Power
Fire Alarm Monitoring Tyco Security Services
Fire Hydrants FDM Contracting
Fire Protection Custom Fire & Sprinkler Services Ltd.
Heating, Ventilating, Air Conditioning. Complete Energy Solution
Landscaping/Snow Removal Bonzai
Pest Control/Fly Lights Orkin Canada
Photocopier Konica Minolta
Security Guards Pillar Security
Cleaners The Ingerv Group
Roof Anchors CSAI
Superintendent The Ingerv Group 

SECTION 113

Shared Facilities Orchard Club
(YCC 300 holds 50% share)



 

THIS POLICY CONTAINS A CLAUSE(S) THAT MAY LIMIT THE AMOUNT PAYABLE 

 
 

 

 

C E R T I F I C A T E   O F    I N S U R A N C E 
 
This is to certify that the policies of Insurance as herein described have been issued to the following Named Insured and are in full force and  
effect as of the date of this Certificate. 
  
Named Insured: York Condominium Corporation 300 and All Registered Unit Owners and All 

 Registered Mortgagees As Their Interest May Appear from time to time 
  
Location Address: 50 & 60 Inverlochy Blvd., Thornhill, Ontario L3T 4T6 

  
Policy Period: December 31, 2019 to December 31, 2020 
 12:01 am standard time at the postal address of the Named Insured 
  
Additional Insured: Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd. 
 (only with respect to liability arising out of the operations of the Named Insured) 
  
Coverage:   
   
Commercial Property:                       XL Specialty Insurance Company / CNA Canada / 

Echelon Insurance / Chubb Insurance / GroupOne 
Insurance Services 

Policy # CISP00654 

  
 Limit of Insurance: $ 84,205,374 Residential Condominium 
 Deductibles: $     25,000 Standard 
  $    100,000 Water Damage 
  $     50,000 Sewer Backup 
  $     50,000 Overland Flooding 
        2% / min.  $100,000 Earthquake 
   
Boiler and Machinery:  XL Specialty Insurance Company   Policy # CISP00654 
     
 Property Damage Limit: $ 84,205,374  
 Deductibles: $      5,000 All HVAC (Heating, Ventilation, Air Conditioning) 

Equipment 
  $      2,500 All Other Objects 
     
Crime:  Chubb Insurance   Policy # 82461339 - 481 
     
 Employee Dishonesty $  1,000,000  
 Deductible: $            1,000        
     
Commercial General Liability: XL Specialty Insurance Company / Echelon Insurance Policy # CISGL00654 
     
 Limit of Liability: $  5,000,000  
 Deductibles: $       5,000 Bodily Injury / Property Damage 
     
Directors and Officers Liability: Victor Insurance Managers Inc.   Policy # NP-520906 - 0561 
     
 Limit of Liability:  $  5,000,000  
 Human Rights Defence Costs:       Included  
     
Legal Expense Coverage: Brit Syndicate 2987 at Lloyd's   Policy # BLS0000690 
     
 Limit of Insurance: $    200,000  
 Aggregate Limit: $  1,000,000  
    
This insurance afforded is subject to the terms, conditions and exclusions of the applicable policy. This Certificate is issued as a matter of information 
only and confers no rights on the holder and imposes no liability on the Insurer. 

 
Condominium Insurance Solutions 
Powered By Benson Kearley IFG 

 
_____________________ 
Authorized Representative 
Date:  December 31, 2019 
E. & O. E 







PRE-AUTHORIZED PAYMENT PLAN AUTHORIZATION 
FOR CONDOMINIUM MONTHLY COMMON CHARGES 

 
RE : OWNERS(S) NAME(S) :             

 OWNER(S) ADDRESS :             

                
 

TO :  YORK  CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. ____ 
 (the "Payee") 

 
AND  TO: CrossBridge Condominium Services Ltd.. (the "Payee's Agent") 
 
AND  TO : Owner(s) Financial Institution or Bank or Trust Company (the "Bank")  

  Name of Financial Institution :              

  Branch Address :              

  City, Province :               

  Branch Transit No.       Account No.        
 

1. THE  UNDERSIGNED  OWNER(S)  AUTHORIZE  the  PAYEE  and the Payee's Agent on the PAYEE'S behalf to debit 

the above account at the above indicated branch of the Bank, in payment of the monthly condominium common charges 

as may be approved by the  PAYEE  from time to time and attributed to the undersigned Owner(s) of Suite            at 

                           , Toronto, Ontario,  _________. 
 
2. A debit in the amount of $             may be drawn on the account, on the 1st day of each month, beginning the 

month of    , 20___. 
 
3. It is acknowledged and agreed by the undersigned that if there are insufficient funds on deposit in the account at the time t hat the 

debit is made by or on behalf of the PAYEE, the insufficiency shall be deemed by the PAYEE to be non-payment of the common 
charges for the particular month. In addition, the undersigned acknowledges and agrees that if any service fees or charges ar e 
incurred because there are insufficient funds on deposit, such fees or charges shall be paid by the undersigned. 

 
4. The Bank is not required to verify that any debits drawn by or on behalf of the PAYEE are in accordance with this Authorizati on or 

the agreement made between the undersigned and the PAYEE. 
 
5. It is acknowledged that in order to cancel this Authorization the undersigned must provide 14 days prior written notice to the 

PAYEE in care of the Payee's Agent at:  Brookfield Condominium Services Ltd., c/o Accounting Department, 111 Gordon Baker Road, 
Suite 700, North York, Ontario M2H 3R1.  This authorization may be cancelled at any time and cancellation will be effective 14 days 
after such written notice of cancellation is actually received by the Payee's Agent.  

 
6. The right is acknowledged by the undersigned, to full reimbursement of a pre-authorized debit made to the account by the Bank, if 

the right is exercised within 90 days after the item in dispute is posted to the account and any of the following conditions apply: 
(a) the PAYEE was never provided with an Authorization, (b) the debit was not drawn in accordance with the Authorization that was 
provided to the PAYEE,  (c) the Authorization that was provided the PAYEE was revoked in writing, or (d) the debit was posted  to 
the wrong account due to incorrect account information. 

 
7. It is acknowledged by the undersigned that delivery of this Authorization to the PAYEE constitutes delivery by the undersigne d to 

the Bank.  It is warranted by the undersigned that all persons whose signatures are required to sign on the above a ccount have signed 
this Authorization.  Receipt is acknowledged by the undersigned of a signed copy of this Authorization.  

 
8. The undersigned will notify the PAYEE (in care of the Payee's Agent at the address set out above) promptly in writing if ther e is any 

change in the above account information or if this Authorization is to be terminated.  
 
9. For verification purposes, please enclose one of your personal cheques marked  " VOID ".  For an account, all depositors must sign 

if more than one signature is required on a cheque issued against the accountholder. 
 
 
     Owner's Signature :           
Date 
     Owner's Name :            
 
     Owner's Address :          
 
     Owner's Signature :           
Date 
     Owner's Name :            
 
     Owner's Address :           
 
 
NOTE :  For verification purposes, please enclosed one of your personal cheques marked  "VOID".  For an account, all depositors mu st sign if 
more than one signature is required on a cheque issued against the accountholder.   







Rev. Oct 18, 2019 

THORNHILL ORCHARDS 

YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 300 

RESIDENT INFORMATION FORM 

 

DATE:_______________________                                 SUITE NO. :_______   BLDG:________________ 

 

RESIDENT NAMES & AGES (AGE - ONLY IF UNDER 16) 
SALUTATION 

Mr/Mrs/Ms/ 

Dr/Rev etc 
FIRST NAME LAST NAME 

YEAR OF BIRTH 

(IF UNDER 18) 

  

 

  

  

 

  

  

 

  

  

 

  

 

NAME TO BE DISPLAYED ON THE DIRECTORY______________________ PHONE NO. _____________ 

(#After name is added to list to provide access to visitors. Please answer and press key pad #6) 

[   ]  I/We OWN the suite [   ]  I/We RENT the suite from  __________________________ 

 

[  ] The suite is registered in the name of ____________________, however all legal notice should be addressed to 

me/us. 

 

TELEPHONE NUMBERS: 

 

HOME: _____________________   CELL PHONE:__________________  [    ] MR  [    ] MS 

  

BUSINESS 1: ____________________  EXT.__________    [    ] MR  [   ] MS 

 

BUSINESS 2: _____________________ EXT.__________    [    ] MR  [    ] MS 

 

EMAIL:______________________________________  

  

THE FOLLOWING INDIVIDUALS IN OUR SUITE WOULD REQUIRE ASSISTANCE IN AN 

EMERGENCY SITUATION:  (Please check primary reason) 

 

______________________________   [   ] mobility [   ] hearing [   ] vision  

 

Do you have oxygen or compressed gas cylinders in your suite?  [    ]  YES   [    ]  NO 

 

VEHICLE INFORMATION: 

PARK 

SPACE 

# 

MAKE/MODEL COLOUR PLATE # 

SPACE 

RENTED 

TO 

SPACE 

RENTED 

FROM 

 

 

     

 

 

     

Do you have a decal on each vehicle?  

[    ]  Yes 

[    ] No  - I need a parking decal for the following ___________________________________  

                     (Please turn over)   

EMERGENCY CONTACT: 



Rev. Oct 18, 2019 

NAME PHONE: RES PHONE: BUS RELATIONSHIP 

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

PETS:    [     ]  CAT  [    ] DOG  [    ] BIRD 

 

Breed: _______________ Colour: _____________  Approx. Weight:_____ lb  Name:_______________ 

 

SEASONAL ADDRESSES: 

 

WINTER:     FROM (APPROX): ______________ T0 (APPROX): ________________  EACH YEAR 

 

ADDRESS:___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

PHONE:________________    EMAIL:______________________________ 

 

SUMMER: FROM (APPROX): ______________ T0 (APPROX): ________________  EACH YEAR 

 

ADDRESS:___________________________________________________________________________ 

 

PHONE:________________    EMAIL:______________________________ 

 

 

BUILDING ACCESS:   

 

1.   How  many access fobs do you have for your suite?  _______________ 

  

Fob #’s (if legible) ______________, ________________, ______________, ___________ 

 

2.   Do you want to become a Hobby Club member?     [   ] YES    [   ] NO  (Annual fee $25) 

 

3.   Do you want to receive notices electronically? (Please form attached) 

 

4.    For Visitor parking registration, Corporation notices and Amenities bookings, please provide  

       email address to set up account on My Condo Link. (Building Software).   

       Welcome email will be sent out. Please follow steps to set up account. 

       User name and temporary password will be provided by Management 

  

       Email Address:______________________________ 

 

 

5. Please confirm the receipt of 2 building Fob Keys; 2 Units Keys plus mail box key. 

 

Key #’s ______________, ________________, ______________, ___________ 

 

  



 

 

THORNHILL ORCHARDS 

 

YORK CONDOMINIUM 

CORPORATION NO. 300 

 

RULES AND REGULATIONS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:    March, 2018_______ 

 

RULES DISTRIBUTED TO OWNERS:   April, 2018 _____ 
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YCC 300 1 Rules & Regulations 

DEFINITIONS:  
 

 

Corporation:  York Condominium Corporation No. 300 – Thornhill 

Orchards. 

 

The Act:  Protecting Condominium Owners Act, 2015, S.O. 2015, 

c.28 – Bill 106. 

 

Board:  Board of Directors of York Condominium Corporation No. 

300. 

 

Owner:  For the purposes of these Rules, an Owner is defined as: 

(i) any “Owner” as defined in the Act; 

(ii) any tenant or occupant of the Owner’s unit; or 

(iii) any person who resides in the Owner’s unit. 

 

Visitor or Guest:  Anyone not in ordinary occupancy of a Unit who comes 

onto York Condominium Corporation No. 300 with the 

permission of an Owner, including, but not limited to, non-

Owner family members, cleaning personnel, home care 

workers, and any other agent of the Owner.  

    

Municipality:  City of Markham. 

 

Property Manager:   Representative of the Property Management Company 

retained by YCC 300. 

 

Condominium Representative:  Board member, Property Manager, Management Assistant, 

or Agent, Site Administrator, Superintendent, Security 

Guard, or any individual or contractor duly authorized by 

the Corporation to carry out the objects and duties of the 

Corporation. 

 

Common Elements:  All Common Areas to which all Owners have access, 

including but not limited to lobbies, corridors, elevators, 

stairwells, grounds, driveways, parking areas, Exclusive 

Use Parking Area. 

 

 

Exclusive Use Common Elements: Areas to which an Owner has exclusive use such as 

balconies, patios, Exclusive Use Parking Area parking 

spaces, lockers. 

 



   

YCC 300 2 Rules & Regulations 

Restricted Use Common Elements: Areas where access is not available to Owners except at 

specific times or accompanied by a Condominium 

Representative, including, but not limited to, mechanical 

rooms, electrical rooms, generator room, garbage 

compactor rooms, storage rooms,  moving elevator (when 

on Service),  moving room, Superintendent suite, 

Management Office, Boardroom, and roof. 

 

Amenities:  Areas for Owner use which may have specific access 

deposits or restrictions, including, bicycle rooms, 

billiard/ping-pong rooms, multi-purpose room, lounges, 

and laundry rooms. 

 

Exclusive Use Parking Area:  The Common Elements parking area located underground 

on York Condominium Corporation No. 300 as referred to 

in Schedule D of the Declaration. 

 

Outside Parking Area:  Outside Common Elements parking area located on the 

ground level of York Condominium Corporation No. 300 

other than areas designated by the Corporation for the 

exclusive use of Visitors. 

 

Visitor Parking Area:  Outside parking area located on the ground level of York 

Condominium Corporation No. 300 designated with the 

letter “V” for the exclusive use of Visitors. 

 

Orchard Club:  Recreational facility shared jointly between YCC 300,  

  YCC 97 and YCC 166. 

 

JMC:  Joint Management Committee of the Orchard Club. 

 

Balcony(ies)  Includes the balcony(ies) and patio(s) ancillary to the  

  unit(s). 

 



   

YCC 300 3 Rules & Regulations 

SECTION I - GENERAL USE AND COMMON ELEMENTS 

  

Costs of Rules Enforcement 

 

     1. Any loss, cost or damages incurred by the Corporation by reason of a breach of any rules 

and regulations in force from time to time by any Owner, his/her family, guests, servants, 

agents or occupants of his/her Unit shall be borne by such Owner and may be recovered 

by the Corporation against such Owner in the same manner as common expenses. 

 

Occupancy of Suites 

 

2. Unit Owners shall supply the names of all Owners and Tenants of all dwelling Units, 

locker Units and parking Units. Owners are required to complete a Suite Information 

Form, including birth years of Owners’ children under the age of 16 years, telephone 

numbers, vehicle information, pet information, emergency contact information and 

information concerning required assistance of Owners in an emergency. Information 

collected by the Management Office shall be kept confidential under the Privacy Policy 

of the Corporation and shall not be released without the express permission of the Owner, 

unless required by law. 

 

3. No Owner shall permit residential units to be occupied by more than the following 

respective number of persons: 

   a) Two bedroom – four (4) persons 

             b)        Three bedroom - six (6) persons.  

 

4. No auction sale, estate sale of suite contents or garage sale shall be held in any unit or on 

the Common Elements or the Exclusive Use Common Elements, or on the property 

without the written consent of the Board. 

 

5. Each Owner must supply current suite key(s) or, if applicable, current combinations to 

combination locks, to the Management Office for the purposes of access to the suite in an 

emergency or for scheduled maintenance, where reasonable notice has been given. 

 

6. No one shall change any lock(s) in a unit or the Common Elements or place any 

additional lock on any door in or to any Unit or the Common Elements, without first 

obtaining the written approval of the Board and, if such approval is given, without first 

providing a key for such changes or additional lock(s) to the Corporation.  No additional 

locks may be installed on any suite doors excepting a chain lock installed on the inside of 

the door. 

 

 

Odours 

 

7. No Owner or his/her family, tenants, occupants or agents, or guests thereof, shall create 

 or permit the creation of any odour within the Owner's unit or on the Common Elements 

 including the Common Elements of which the Owner has exclusive use.  If such odour 
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 creates a nuisance or  otherwise disturbs, annoys or compromises the health, comfort or 

 well-being of any other Owner or their guests or any other person attending the 

 condominium property, the Board, at its sole discretion, may take reasonable steps to 

 eliminate such nuisance.   

 

8. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, these Rules Respecting Odours may 

 apply in appropriate cases to the following non-exhaustive list of odours and 

 nuisances: 

 

 a. cigarettes, cannabis (marijuana), or other tobacco smoke; 

 b. e-cigarettes; 

 c. strong cooking odours; 

 d. noxious odours from renovations; 

 e. cat litter odours. 

 

9. In addition to any legislative restrictions from time to time with respect to the use, growth 

 and production of cannabis in any interior common areas or any dwelling Units, locker 

 Units and parking Units, there shall be no growth and no smoking of cannabis, including, 

 without limitation, any derivative of cannabis, in any dwelling Unit, locker Unit, parking 

 Unit, or anywhere on, within or upon the Corporation’s property, which includes all 

 exterior common elements of the Corporation and the exclusive use Balconies. The 

 foregoing rule does not apply to individuals who are authorized to possess and use 

 cannabis for medicinal purposes. 

  

10. Any Owner or other person in breach of these Rules Respecting Odours shall, 

 immediately upon notice from the Corporation, take all necessary steps to abate the 

 subject odour(s), at his or her own expense, to the satisfaction of the Board and shall 

 comply with any specific directions from the Board which it requires to eliminate or 

 reduce the odour(s). 

  

11. Without limiting the generality of these Rules Respecting Odours, the directions from the 

 Board may include, in appropriate cases, the following:  

  

 a. Installing air filtering equipment or 'scent beams' or the like; 

 

 b. Installing range hoods; 

 

c. Permanently refraining from the activity which causes the odour, including but 

not limited to, ceasing to smoke cigarettes, marijuana or other tobacco products 

within the unit and/or elsewhere on the condominium property; 

 

 d. Permanently removing pets from the condominium property. 

 

12. In the event that an Owner or other person fails to comply with these Rules Respecting 

 Odours, the Board may take such steps as may be necessary to eliminate or reduce the 

 odour and the Owner shall be liable jointly to the Corporation for all expenses incurred 
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 by the Corporation in attempting to abate the subject odour(s).  Such expenses may 

 include lawyer's fees on a solicitor and his or her own client basis. 

 

13. Each of the provisions of these Rules Respecting Odours shall be deemed to be 

 independent and severable, and the invalidity or unenforceability in whole or in part of 

 any one or more of such provisions shall not be deemed to impair or affect in any manner 

 the validity or enforceability of any of the other provisions of these Rules Respecting 

 Odours. 

 

 

Use of Common Elements 

 

14. Smoking is prohibited in all interior common areas including, without limiting the 

generality of the foregoing, corridors, stairwells, elevators, lobbies, multi-purpose room, 

lounges, laundry rooms, billiard rooms, hobby rooms and the garage and any other areas 

defined by current Smoke-Free Ontario legislation.   

 

15. No lock box, security box, sign, advertisement or notice shall be inscribed, painted, 

affixed or placed on any part of the inside or outside of the buildings or Common 

Elements whatsoever without the prior written consent of the Board. 

 

16. An Owner shall not place, leave or permit to be placed or left in or upon the Common 

Elements including those of which he has the exclusive use (including Balconies and 

parking spaces) any debris, refuse or garbage.  

 

17. The sidewalks, entry, passageways, walkways and driveways used in common by the 

Owners shall not be obstructed by any of the Owners or used by them for any purpose 

other than for ingress and egress to and from their respective Units.  

 

18. No bicycle riding, skateboarding, rollerblading or roller-skating is permitted on the 

Common Elements, inside or outside the buildings. 

 

19. Nothing shall be thrown or shaken out of the suite door onto the Common Elements and 

no items, including but not limited to mats, shoes, strollers, children’s toys, scooters or 

handicapped devices may be left in the common corridors. 

 

20. No building, structure or tent shall be erected, placed, located, kept or maintained on the 

Common Elements and the Exclusive Use Common Elements and no trailer, either with 

or without living, sleeping or eating accommodations, shall be placed, located, kept or 

maintained on the Common Elements and the Exclusive Use Common Elements. 

 

Exterior Common Elements, Windows, Balconies 

 

21. No one shall harm, mutilate, destroy, alter or litter any of the landscaping work on the 

property, including grass, trees, shrubs, hedges, flowers or flower beds, nor make any 

alterations to same without the prior written consent of the Board. 
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22. No building or structure or tent shall be erected, placed, located, kept or maintained on 

the Exclusive Use Common Elements. 

 

23. Nothing shall be thrown, swept, or permitted to be blown out of or off any window, door, 

and Balcony, including but not limited to cigarette butts and cigar stubs.  Nor shall any 

mop, broom, duster, rug or bedding be shaken or beaten from any window, door, and 

Balcony, nor from any other portion of the Common Elements or any Exclusive Use 

Common Elements.  

 

24. No Owner shall make any alteration, addition or improvement to, nor decorate or 

renovate any part of the Common Elements or the Exclusive Use Common Elements 

without prior compliance with the Act, as amended, including the obtaining of prior 

written approval from the Board. 

 

25. If an Owner is given such approval by the Board for any such alteration referred to above 

in the previous Rule, such Owner agrees to sign the necessary alteration agreement(s) and 

pay any costs associated with the registration of the agreement(s) on title as the Board 

may determine. 

 

26. All draperies, curtains or other window coverings placed by an Owner in or over the 

windows of the Units shall be such that the backing or the exterior surface thereof facing 

only to the window are off-white, beige or white in colour. 

 

27. No awnings or shades shall be erected over and outside of the windows.  Each Owner 

shall ensure that nothing is affixed, attached to, hung, displayed or placed on the exterior 

doors, walls, windows, window sills or railings of the building.  

 

28. Nothing shall be placed on the outside of window sills or projections or Balcony railings 

without the prior written consent of the Board. Planters must be hung on the interior side 

of the Balcony railing. 

 

29. No storage box or container shall be placed on the Balcony unless the height of the 

storage box or container is lower than the height of the Balcony railing.   

 

30. Concrete surfaces of balconies may be painted using the paint and colour as specified and 

approved by the Board and the information for such paint and colour is available from the 

Management Office. 

 

31. Glued down carpeting, ceramic, marble or vinyl tiles or any type of glue down flooring is 

not permitted on Balcony floors due to potential damage to the concrete surfaces. Loose-

laid carpeting may be installed, provided that it is rolled up and stored annually during 

the months of November to April. 

 

32. Seasonal furniture is allowed on the Balconies, including those areas which are Exclusive 

Use Common Elements of the Owner or Owners. These areas shall not be used for 
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general storage, including but not limited to, bicycles and vehicular tires. No clothesline 

or similar device shall be allowed on any portion of the Common Elements including, 

without limitation, the Exclusive Use Common Elements, nor shall such areas be used to 

hang clothes, laundry or other objects where they will be visible from the exterior of the 

building. 

 

33. No barbeque or cooking appliance, including any device powered by solar energy or 

electricity or requiring gas or propane, is permitted on the Balconies. 

 

34. When watering plants or cleaning items on the Balcony, Owners must contain any 

overflow and not permit water and/or dirt to escape onto suites below. 

 

35. No television antenna, aerial, tower, satellite dish, exterior audio speakers or similar 

structure and appurtenances thereto shall be erected on or fastened to any Unit, except in 

connection with a common television cable system or communications equipment located 

on the building or property under a lease agreement with the Corporation. 

 

36. No additional lighting, decorative or otherwise, may be installed on Balconies except 

temporary seasonal lighting or decorating for holiday occasions without the prior written 

approval of the Board.  Any such lighting and decorating must be removed within two (2) 

weeks after the holiday. 

 

SECTION II - SAFETY AND SECURITY 
 

1. No Owner shall permit anything to be done in his unit or bring or keep anything therein 

which will in any way increase the risk of fire and the rate of fire insurance on any 

building, or on the property kept therein, or obstruct or interfere with the  rights of other 

Owners, or in any way injure or annoy them, or conflict with the laws relating to fire or 

with the regulations of the Fire Department or with any insurance policy carried by the 

Corporation or conflict with any of the rules and ordinances of the Board of Health or 

with any Statute or Municipal by-law. 

 

2. Sinks, toilets, bathtubs, showers and other water apparatus shall not be used for purposes 

other than those for which they are constructed and no sweepings, garbage, rubbish, rags, 

ashes or other substances shall be thrown therein. Any damage resulting from misuse or 

from unusual or unreasonable use shall be borne by the Owner. 

 

3. Water shall not be left running unless in actual use. 

 

4. All appliances (including, but not limited to washers, dryers, fridges, stoves, and 

dishwashers) brought into the unit must be installed and connected by properly licenced 

and qualified tradesmen. No portable appliances, other than handheld, may be used in the 

unit. 

 

5. All electrical and plumbing installations and repairs must be carried out by a licensed 

tradesperson.  No Owner shall knowingly overload existing drains or electrical circuits in 
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his/her unit and shall not alter in any way the amperage of the existing circuit breakers or 

the distribution panel in his/her unit, nor use any mechanical or electrical installation for 

any purpose other than that for which it was constructed. 

 

6. Each Owner shall immediately report to the Corporation all incidents of pests, including 

but not limited to, insects, vermin or rodents.  All Owners shall fully cooperate with the 

Corporation if necessary to provide access to each unit for the purpose or conducting a 

spraying program to eliminate any incident of pests, insects, vermin or rodents within the 

building.  The cost of such elimination shall be borne by the Owner. 

 

7. No stores of coal, fuel or any combustible or offensive goods or provisions or materials 

shall be permitted in any of the units or any part of the Exclusive Use Common Elements 

or Common Elements. 

 

8. Firecrackers or other fireworks are not permitted in any unit or on the Common Elements 

or the Exclusive Use Common Elements. 

 

9. Exterior access doors shall not be left unlocked, opened or wedged open for any reason. 

 

10. No Visitor or Guest may use or have access to the Common Elements and facilities 

unless accompanied by an Owner. 

 

11. Owners shall not drop cigarette butts, cigar butts or ashes in the garbage chutes, 

corridors, stairwells and garbage area or off the Balconies or on any other areas of the 

Common Elements and the Exclusive Use Common Elements.  

 

12. No Owner shall disconnect, tamper with, alter or repair any element of the fire alarm 

system. 

 

13. Each Owner shall install, maintain and repair smoke alarms within 10 feet of each 

bedroom door (even if a bedroom as designated on the building plans is not currently 

being used as a bedroom), provided that such device is approved by fire Underwriters' 

Laboratories of Canada. Smoke alarms are subject to inspection annually by the 

Corporation in order to ensure compliance with The Fire Code.  The cost of any repairs 

or replacements of smoke alarms required as a result of such inspection is the 

responsibility of the Owner and such costs will be charged-back to the Owner.  Owners 

should be aware that smoke alarms have a specific life span and must be replaced every 

10 years or sooner if required by The Fire Code or the Manufacturer. 

 

14. Build-up of lint within dryer housings and exhaust ductwork is a known cause of fires.  It 

is therefore mandatory that every unit that has a dryer must have a secondary lint trap in 

addition to the lint trap on the appliance.  No dryer may be installed in any Unit without 

the required secondary lint trap.  It is strongly recommended and is each Owner’s 

responsibility to clean the lint trap located in the duct work (ceiling or wall) so as not to 

block air flow and prevent build-up of unsafe quantities of lint. It is strongly 
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recommended and is each Owner’s responsibility that Owners have the interior of dryers 

(around drum and motor) cleaned every one to three years for fire safety.  

  

15. While they are entering or exiting, Owners should not permit anyone into the building 

whom they do not know personally to be an Owner.   

 

16. Waterbeds are not permitted. 

 

17. Installation of weather-stripping around suite doors which obstructs the proper air flow 

from the corridor into the suite is not permitted.  

 

18. Suite doors must be kept closed and latched when not in use. Doors may not be blocked 

open and no permanent “kick-down” door stop may be installed. This is a safety hazard 

in the event of fire.  Exterior doors may not have any permanent item attached or 

installed to them. 

 

19. Bicycles and car tires are not to be transported by elevator or via the stairs. 

 

 

SECTION III - QUIET ENJOYMENT 
 

1. No noise, caused by any instrument or other devices, or otherwise, in the units, Exclusive 

Use Common Elements (including Balconies) or Common Element areas which, in the 

opinion of the Board may be calculated to disturb the comfort of the other Owners, shall 

be permitted. 

 

2. Owners, their families, guests, visitors and servants shall not create or permit the creation 

of or continuation of any noise or nuisance in the units, Exclusive Use Common 

Elements (Balconies) or Common Element areas which, in the opinion of the Board or 

the Manager, may or does disturb the comfort or quiet enjoyment of the property by other 

Owners, their families, guests, visitors, servants and persons having business with them. 

 

3. No undue noise shall be made in the corridors, especially in the tile areas at the elevator 

locations. In consideration of other Owners on the floor, there shall be no loud 

conversations, shouting, running, use of toys, including riding toys and balls in the 

corridors or stairwells. Children are not permitted to play in the corridors or stairwells. 

 

4. Any repairs to the units or Common Elements shall only be made only on weekdays 

between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., with the exception of situations deemed by 

the Board to be an emergency or exceptional situation.  Repairs within units are not 

permitted on Saturdays, Sundays or statutory holidays. 

 

5. Children are not permitted to play in any Common Elements areas including in the 

corridors of the building, lobby, stairwells, elevators, fire exits, exterior or interior 

driveway or in any parking area, except for the courtyard while under adult supervision. 
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SECTION IV - PARKING AND DRIVING ON PROPERTY 

 
Driving on Property 

 

1. Vehicle travel speed, including the driveways, the ramp and the Exclusive Use Parking 

Area, is restricted to 15 km per hour. 

 

2. All vehicles must obey the directional signs on the driveways.   

 

3. Vehicles on the property or in the Exclusive Use Parking Area must yield the right-of-

way to pedestrians at all times. 

 

Parking - General 

 

4. No motor vehicle other than a private passenger automobile shall be parked on any part 

of the Common Elements (including any part thereof, of which any Owner may have the 

exclusive use) nor shall any repairs be made to such motor vehicle on the Common 

Elements and no motor vehicle shall be driven on any part of the Common Elements 

other than on a driveway or parking space.    

 

5. All motor vehicles must be parked in a designated parking space. No motor vehicle may 

be stopped or parked in the designated Fire Routes at any time. Motor vehicles may only 

park in the loading dock areas with the specific permission of the Corporation. 

 

6. All motor vehicles parked on the property must be of a size to fit easily within a parking 

space and may not encroach onto any part of the Common Elements, including the curbs, 

driveways and walkways. Vehicles must be parked in such a manner as to not damage 

vehicles parked in adjacent parking spaces when entering or exiting the vehicle. Motor 

vehicles larger than 5.8 meters in length and 2 meters in width may not be parked in the 

Exclusive Use Parking Area, the Outside Parking Area or the Visitor Parking Area. 

 

7. No trailer, boat, snowmobile, mechanical toboggan, machinery or equipment of any kind 

shall be parked on any part of the Common Elements other than on a designated parking 

space located in the Exclusive Use Parking Area.  All items so parked are subject to 

Section II paragraph 7 set out above. 

 

8. No recreational vehicle, trailer (with or without sleeping facilities), boat or mechanical 

toboggan shall be parked in the parking space at any time in the Exclusive Use Parking 

Area, the Outside Parking Area or the Visitor Parking Area. 

 

9. No one, including Owners, non-Owners or Visitors may park a derelict vehicle on the 

property. A derelict vehicle is defined as a vehicle that: 

• Does not display a current licence plate in the form and manner prescribed by the 

Ontario Highway Traffic Act and regulations.  

• Appears to be unsafe, dangerous or inoperable to the extent that a Safety Standards 

Certificate as provided for by the Ontario Highway Traffic Act could not be issued. 
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• Is lacking any component(s) which would be required for the safe and legal operation 

of the motor vehicle in accordance with the Ontario Highway Traffic Act. 

• Is not capable of being started and moved on short notice. 

• Is leaking oil, fuel or other fluid 

 

10. A derelict motor vehicle parked or left on any part of the Common Elements is liable to 

be tagged or towed and stored in a suitable place and all costs, charges and expenses are 

collectible in the same manner as common expenses. Upon notice to the Owner, the said 

Owner is responsible for all such costs, charges and expenses resulting from towing and 

storage of a derelict motor vehicle belonging to such Owner, his family or any member 

thereof, or any other Owner of his Unit, or any guests, invitees or licensees of such 

Owner. 

 

11. Nothing shall be stored in an Exclusive Use Parking Area other than a bundle buggy.  

Hooks may be installed to hang the bundle buggy at the request and cost of the Owner. 

All installations of hooks must be with the approval of the Board and installed by a 

contractor approved by the Board.  

 

Parking by Owners 

 

12. Parking spaces to which unit Owners have exclusive use may only be used by Owners 

who normally reside in one of the units in the buildings, unless special permission has 

been granted by the Corporation for a visitor’s vehicle as provided for under Rule 19. 

Owners who are not registered as Owners on the property may not use the exclusive-use 

parking area or Owner’s outdoor parking areas. 

 

13. All vehicles belonging to Owners must be registered with the Management Office by 

providing the suite number, vehicle make, model, colour and licence plate number. 

 

14. All vehicles belonging to Owners and parked in the Exclusive Use Parking Area or 

Owner’s Outside Parking Area must display a parking decal affixed to the lower left front 

windshield. Different coloured decals are issued for Exclusive Use Parking Areas and 

Outside Parking Areas and the decals are not interchangeable or transferable. 

 

15. Accommodation for motor vehicles requiring an outdoor Owner parking space is limited 

by the number of parking spaces available and the Corporation does not guarantee that a 

space may be available.  The Board shall act reasonably and in the best interest of the 

Corporation in issuing decals.  

 

16. No Owner shall park or leave a motor vehicle in the Exclusive Use Parking Area or in the 

Outside Parking Area, unless the said Owner obtains a parking authorization decal 

authorizing that Owner to park in that parking area. 

 

17. As outdoor parking is limited, only one decal will be issued per unit, subject to 

availability.  Any Owner who has previously been issued more than one decal for an 

Outside Parking Area must relinquish the additional Outside Parking Area space(s) and 
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will be given ninety (90) days’ notice to make alternative parking arrangements.  Failure 

to comply may result in removal of the vehicle by the Corporation. 

 

18. An Owner who has only one vehicle may not apply for an Outside Parking Area for the 

said vehicle.  Outdoor Parking Areas are reserved for Owners who have an additional 

vehicle.  Owners may not obtain an Outdoor Parking Area for the sole purpose of renting 

their Exclusive Use Parking Area. 

 

19. Exclusive Use Parking spaces may only be issued to an Owner residing in the 

Corporation’s buildings. Owners parking in an Outdoor Parking area may not lease the 

parking space. 

 

20. Upon renting an Exclusive Use Parking Area space from a Unit Owner, the renter must 

obtain from the Management Office the appropriate parking decal.  Should the vehicle 

have an existing outdoor parking space decal, the outdoor parking space decal must be 

removed. 

 

21. Owners may not park in the Visitor Parking area at any time. 

 

Parking - Visitor 

 

22. Visitor parking spaces are for visitors and guests of Owners.  Contractors and tradesmen 

may not park in visitor parking spaces.  General Contractors must report to the 

Management Office where they will be issued with a parking permit and directed to an 

appropriate parking area. 

 

23. All vehicles parked in the Visitor Parking area between the hours of 12:00 midnight and 

6:00 a.m. must display a Visitor Parking permit for the specific date(s) issued. 

 

24. Visitor parking permits may be issued by the Owner using on-line registration or by 

Security for not more than seven (7) days per month. Visitor parking permits required for 

periods of more than seven (7) days per month must be obtained from the Management 

Office by providing the vehicle make, model, colour and license plate number.  Issuance 

for extensions of parking permits will be at the discretion of Management and/or the 

Corporation. 

 

25. No non-Owner or Visitor may park or leave a motor vehicle in the Fire Routes or any 

parking space other than a space that is designated as Visitor Parking. 

 

26. Under certain circumstances, such as serious illness, physical impairment or other 

compelling reason, a non-Owner vehicle may be parked in the parking space which has 

been allocated as an Exclusive Use Common Elements to the suite which they are 

visiting. A special parking permit must be obtained from the Management Office, 

providing the make, model, colour and license plate number of the vehicle and the name 

and a contact telephone number of the Owner of the vehicle. 

 



   

YCC 300 13 Rules & Regulations 

 

Parking Enforcement 

  

27. Motor vehicles that are in violation of any of the above rules are liable to be tagged or 

towed away and stored in a suitable place. All costs, charges and expenses associated 

with towing and storage shall be paid to the Corporation by the Owner of the motor 

vehicle or the condominium unit Owner who the owner of vehicle was visiting. Any such 

cost, charges and expenses are collectable in the same manner as common expenses due 

and owing from the condominium unit Owner upon notice to the unit Owner of the 

amount of such costs, charges and expenses. 

 

28. Parking tickets issued by the Municipality or those designated by the Municipality to 

lawfully issue Municipal parking tickets must be disputed through the Municipal Parking 

Control system. The Corporation or its Agent is not responsible for the payment of or 

cancellation of parking tickets issued under the authority of the Municipality. 

 

29. Prior to a derelict vehicle being towed away and stored, the Corporation shall follow the 

following procedures. 

• An investigation shall be made to determine the ownership of the vehicle either by 

existing licence plates on the vehicle or by its location in the Exclusive Use Parking 

Area allocated to a particular Unit; and 

• The owner of the vehicle shall be given notice that the vehicle has been found to be 

derelict and violates this rule. The notice should further state that the motor vehicle 

will be towed away and stored if the vehicle is not made safe and operable within 

fifteen (15) days of the date of the notice. The notice shall then be delivered to the 

address of the Owner of the motor vehicle, if known, or if unknown to the unit that 

such vehicle Owner occupies, and a copy of the said notice shall be placed visibly on 

the front wind shield of the said derelict motor vehicle. 

 

In the event that the motor vehicle is known to belong to an occupant of a Unit, then 

every reasonable effort shall be made to notify the said occupant personally before the 

towing and storage. 

 

30. It is recommended that Owners away for a long period of time inform the Management 

Office of an arrangement or means by which their vehicle can be moved in an 

emergency. Otherwise, the Corporation may have to have their vehicle towed at the 

Owner’s expense.  
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SECTION V - PETS 
 

1. The provisions of the Declaration of York Condominium Corporation No. 300 restricting 

occupancy of Units to a single pet. For the purposes of this provision, a pet is defined as a 

dog, cat or bird.  

 

2. Notwithstanding paragraph 1 above, multiple pets owned, kept and maintained by 

Owners in the unit or on the Common Elements as of June 1, 2007 shall continue to be 

permitted in the unit and on the Common Elements subject to the following provisions: 

 

• the pets must have been registered with the Property Manager as of  August 31, 2007; 

• the right of an Owner to keep or allow pets that have been so registered in a unit or on 

the Common Elements shall continue only as long as the said Owner continues to 

reside in the said unit; 

• the death of a registered pet terminates the registration which is not transferable to 

any other non-registered pet; in other words, the deceased pet may not be replaced if 

another pet is already being kept or maintained by the occupant. 

 

3. All pets must be registered with the Corporation, such registration citing type of pet, 

breed, colour and approximate weight as well as any other distinguishing features.  

 

4. All dogs and cats must wear a collar, bearing proof of current vaccinations for rabies. 

 

5. All pets must be kept on a leash, not exceeding 1.5 meters, and must be kept under 

control of the Owner at all times when on the Common Elements  

 

6. Dogs must be taken off the property to urinate or defecate. Owners are responsible to 

pick up dog droppings in accordance with the Municipal By-Laws and dispose of them in 

a proper garbage container.  If clean-up is not performed, the Owner will be charged for 

clean-up by the Corporation.  Such cost will be assessed on the Owner’s unit as common 

expenses and shall be collectable as such, as will any other damages caused by the pet in 

accordance with all applicable municipal by-laws. 

 

7.   Pets are not to be left unattended on balconies or patios and any urine or excrement on 

the balconies or patios must be cleaned up immediately. 

 

8.  No Owner or Visitor shall permit a pet(s) to bark, howl or cause a noise or disturbance 

which disturbs the comfort or quiet enjoyment of the property by Owners.  

 

9.  Kitty litter will block pipes and cannot be flushed down the toilet due to swelling after it 

enters pipes.  Kitty litter must be double-bagged, securely tied and disposed of together 

with your organic waste. 

 

10. No pet shall be permitted to litter, dirty, mutilate or destroy any of the Common 

Elements, including but not limited to, landscaping, grass, trees, shrubs, hedges or 

flowers.  Any damage caused will be the full responsibility of the pet's Owner.   Costs 
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incurred as a result of clean-up or damage to any of the Common Elements, will be back-

charged to the Owner. 

 

11.  No pet that is deemed by the Board or Manager, in its absolute discretion to be a nuisance 

shall be kept by an Owner of any unit, in the unit or on the Common Elements.  Any 

Owner who keeps a registered pet that is deemed a nuisance in a unit or on the Common 

Elements shall, within fourteen (14) days of receipt of a written notice from the Board or 

the Manager requesting the permanent removal of such pet from the unit and Common 

Elements 

 

 

SECTION VI - GARBAGE DISPOSAL, ORGANIC WASTE 

                       AND RECYCLING 

 
Use of TriSorter 

 

1. The TriSorter must be used in accordance with the instructions provided to the Owners.  

Instructions are posted in all of the chute rooms.  The TriSorter may be used between the 

hours of 8:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. 

 

2. All garbage must be sorted into garbage waste, organic waste and recycling in accordance 

with the current City of Markham lists for these categories. 

  

3. The Chute Room – Items to be placed in TriSorter 

 

a. Household garbage must be securely wrapped and tied in plastic or polyethylene 

bags and placed down the garbage chute and must be pushed fully down the 

chute.  Large garbage items that will not easily fit into a plastic bag cannot be 

thrown down the TriSorter chute and must be disposed of in the Brown Bins at the 

back of the buildings.   

 

b. Recycling items are to be thrown down the chute in loose form, and not in plastic 

bags.  Cardboard too large to be thrown down the chute must be broken down flat 

and cut to a size that will fit into the blue recycling containers at the back of the 

buildings.  Large pizza boxes are not to be thrown down the chute and must be 

disposed of in the recycling bins at the back of the buildings. 

 

c. Organic items must be securely bound and tied in plastic bags.  Organic waste 

must be double-bagged. 

 

d. The chute and the chute door must be completely closed and latched following 

disposal for fire safety and to prevent odours in the floors.  Garbage may not be 

left in the chute room at any time. 
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4. Hazardous waste as defined by the City of Markham must be taken by the individual 

Owner or Owner to the City of Markham hazardous waste depot.  Batteries may be 

disposed of in the City of Markham battery boxes located in the mail rooms. 

 

5. Used furniture, appliances and construction waste, including but not limited to carpeting, 

drywall, cabinetry, doors and frames and other items being disposed of during suite 

renovations, must be removed from the property by the Owner or their 

contractor/supplier. Any costs incurred by the Corporation for the removal of large 

garbage items, white goods (appliances)  or construction materials will be charged back 

to the Owner. 

 

SECTION VII - MOVES AND DELIVERIES 
 

1. Moves and deliveries are permitted on Monday to Friday, 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. only.  If 

additional time is required, moves and deliveries may continue from 5:00 p.m. to 7:00 

p.m. provided that Corporation staff is available during that time.  Additional costs for 

this extra time may be charged by the Corporation.  No moves or deliveries are allowed 

on Saturdays, Sundays or Statutory Holidays, without the specific permission of the 

Corporation. This permission will only be given for emergency deliveries of appliances 

to replace a non-functioning refrigerator or stove or medical equipment. 

 

2. Moves of all heavy or bulky furniture or contents, and all moves associated with a change 

of occupancy, are only permitted in the service elevator, which must be protected with 

pads and floor covering prior to the move commencing. 

 

3. Application for use of the service elevator shall be made to the Management Office at 

least fourteen (14) days in advance of the proposed move during normal business hours 

Monday to Friday. A security deposit in the amount of $500.00 or other such amount as 

approved by the Board from time to time, payable by cash, certified cheque or money 

order shall be required prior to the commencement of the move. 

 

4. No move-in shall be booked for a tenant until such time as delivery of the executed 

Summary of Lease/Renewal, as required under the Act, has been submitted to the 

Management Office. (See Section IX - Occupancy and Leasing.) 

 

5. Prior to the start of the move, the Manager or Superintendent and the Owner or tenant 

shall complete an inspection of the elevator, the corridor between the elevator and suite 

door and the suite door and frame. Following the completion of this inspection, the 

Superintendent will place the elevator on service and provide instructions as to its use.  

Owners booking elevators must attend both inspections and are encouraged to participate 

and take photographs.  Owners will be held responsible for any damages incurred during 

their move. 

 

6. The Owner whose goods are being moved shall remain with or near the service elevator 

at all times during the move, until the move is complete. 
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7. Upon completion of the move, the Owner shall report to the Manager or Superintendent, 

whereupon the Manager or Superintendent and the Owner shall complete a final 

inspection of the elevator, corridors and other relevant Common Elements areas to 

determine if any damage has been caused and the extent of such damage. 

 

8. In the event of damage, the Corporation shall deduct from the security deposit lodged 

with it, the cost of repair of any damage noted on the said final inspection that had not 

been noted in the first inspection and appears reasonably to have been caused by the 

move. The security deposit or balance thereof after deduction will be forwarded to the 

Owner by mail within one week; or if there is damage, once the actual cost of repair of 

the same in known and has been deducted. 

 

9. Should there be evidence of pest infestation or upon the new Owner’s request, the 

Manager shall arrange for pest control spraying during the period of the move-out and a 

subsequent move-in. This period must be of a least 4 hours duration to permit for the 

spraying, but a 24 hour period is recommended to avoid any effects of the toxic spray. 

 

10 All deliveries, including contractor tools and materials, must be booked through the 

Management Office and come into the building via the moving room and service 

elevator. No deliveries may be made through the front lobby doors without express 

permission of the Corporation. 

 

 

SECTION VIII - SUITE RENOVATIONS AND INSPECTIONS 
 

Suite Renovations 

 

1. Before undertaking any renovation to the suite, the Owner must complete the Suite 

Renovation forms available from the Management Office and have them approved by the 

Board. Suite renovations do not include minor repairs or painting of the suite. 

 

2. No Owner may remove the existing floor covering of a unit in the Corporation without 

immediately replacing the same with new wall-to-wall carpeting or a Board approved 

hard floor covering with Board approved sound absorbing material underneath (STC and 

ITC ratings both greater than 70 and/or an IIC rating of 70 or greater and an established 

record of ongoing durability while sustaining these ratings).  

  

3. Entrance hallways, washrooms, store rooms, utility rooms, in-suite laundry rooms, hall 

closets and kitchens which were originally covered with vinyl, tile or linoleum may be 

surfaced with the same material. Unit Owners are, however, encouraged to utilize 

approved sound absorbing barriers in these areas also. 

 

4 Unit Owners who wish to convert to hard floorings will submit a detailed plan of the 

renovation, along with the signed Hard Flooring renovation form, which must include a 

sketch of the areas to be resurfaced, samples and specification sheets of the proposed 
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sound absorbing material to be used and details regarding the method of installation. 

Approval of the Corporation is required prior to the commencement of the project. 

 

5. Approved projects will be scheduled in such a fashion that the Corporation or its 

representative will be afforded an opportunity to inspect the worksite after the sound 

absorbing layer has been installed but before hard floor covering is applied. 

 

6. Only licensed trades may be used for plumbing and electrical renovations. Owners must 

provide proof of insurance and a Worker’s Safety & Insurance Board (WSIB) insurance 

number from their contractor prior to engaging the contractor to complete renovations. 

 

7. The Owner must book the moving elevator in accordance with the Rules for Moving and 

Deliveries for all deliveries and removal of tools and materials. 

 

8. The Corporation recognizes that Owners have the right to renovate their suites. 

Renovation noise which transmits to other suites, such as hammering, drilling, cutting, 

may only take place between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday to Friday. 

 

9. Cutting of materials during renovations must be done within the suite being renovated 

and not on the Common Elements or Exclusive Use Common Elements (including 

balconies). 

 

10. If renovations generate sawdust or drywall dust, the HVAC units must be disabled by 

removing fuses and covering the grills with plastic in order to protect the HVAC units.  If 

the unit requires heat during the renovations while the HVAC units are disabled, the 

contractor must provide electric construction heater(s). 

 

11. All construction debris and carpeting must be removed from the site by the Owner or 

their contractor and may not be disposed of in the Corporation garbage bins in 

accordance with the Rules for Garbage and Recycling. 

 

Unit Inspections 

 

12. The Corporation, through its duly authorized agent, may carry out an annual safety 

inspection of each unit within both condominium buildings and each Owner shall 

reasonably cooperate with the Corporation and its agent carrying out such inspection. 

 

13. The inspection shall identify potential hazards of fire and water escape and condition of 

Common Elements as well as condition of Common Elements components, and without 

limiting the generality of the foregoing, may include an inspection of kitchen and 

bathroom exhaust fans, dryer hoses, ductwork and vents, electrical outlets, connections or 

extensions, smoke alarms, plumbing, including taps, bathroom tiles or grouting, washing 

machine hoses, shut-off valves, fan coil units, windows, doors, and Balconies or any 

overcrowding condition. 
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14. Wherever possible, the Owner of the condominium unit shall reasonably attempt to be 

present for the inspection; however, if such Owner, having been given reasonable notice, 

is not present, then the Corporation’s agent shall be entitled to carry out such inspection 

in the absence of the Owner.  In the event that the Owner is absent, the agent must leave a 

card noting that the work was done. 

 

15. The Corporation’s agent shall provide a written report to the Board with respect to all 

unit inspections with each Owner, subject to the Act, having the right to inspect any 

report pertaining to that Owner’s unit. 

 

16. If an inspection indicates that repairs or corrections are required with respect to any 

particular unit, the Owner of that unit, upon notification by the Board of such required 

repairs, shall, at the sole expense of that Owner, carry out such repairs or corrections 

within a reasonable time, and in a good and workmanlike manner, using materials of 

reasonably acceptable quality. Should an Owner neglect or refuse to carry out required 

repairs or corrections within a reasonable time, the Corporation may carry out such 

repairs or corrections, with the cost of such repairs or corrections to be added to that 

Owners’ contribution towards common expenses giving rise to a lien in favour of the 

Corporation against that Owner’s unit in accordance with the Act. 

 

SECTION IX - OCCUPANCY AND LEASING 
 

1. The Owner of a unit, when entering an agreement to lease the Unit to Tenants, must 

supply a Summary of Lease/Renewal, setting out the details of the lease and a declaration 

that he or she has supplied the Tenant with a copy of the Declaration, By-Laws and Rules 

of the Corporation, as required by the Act. A copy of the executed lease signed by the 

Tenant, agreeing that the Tenant will comply with the Declaration, By-Laws, Rules and 

Regulations of the Corporation must be attached to the Summary of Lease/Renewal. In 

addition to this Declaration, the lease shall contain the following provisions: 

 

a) The Tenant agrees to use the rental premises for residential purposes only and for no 

other purpose whatsoever, and the Tenant further agrees not to allow the rented 

premises to be occupied or otherwise used by anyone other than the persons listed in 

the tenancy agreement without providing written notice to the Corporation setting 

out the name, age and relationship of the occupant to the Tenant.  

 

b)  The Landlord and Tenant mutually covenant that neither, by their own acts nor those 

of their family, servants, guests or agents will they do or permit any act upon the 

premises which may in any way be objectionable or injurious to the reputation of the 

premises or other parties. 

 

2. Tenants are required to complete a Suite Information Form, including birth years of 

children under the age of 16 years, telephone numbers, vehicle information, pet 

information, emergency contact information and information concerning assistance of 

Owners required in an emergency. Information collected by the Management Office shall 
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be kept confidential under the privacy policy of the Corporation and shall not be released 

without the express permission of the Owner, unless required by law. 

 

3. Both the Owner and Tenant must sign a covenant whereby the Owner either assigns the 

right of recreation centre use to the Tenant or retains it thereby excluding the Tenant from 

such use. 

 

4. Insofar as Article IX (3) of the Corporation’s Declaration requires that Unit Owners 

purchase Property Damage and Liability Insurance for their suite, it shall be required that 

the Owner of any rented unit shall obtain a copy of the Certificate of Insurance with 

respect to the rented unit and have it directly forwarded to the Corporation, by the 

Insurance Provider, before or at the time the Tenant information Form is submitted and 

upon each insurance renewal thereafter.  It is recommended that tenants also obtain their 

own insurance policies to cover their own liability and property and a copy of such policy 

must be submitted to the Corporation immediately upon such a policy coming into force. 

 

The amount of Liability Insurance coverage shall be determined by the Corporation, 

 acting within reasonable and accepted limits.  This amount will be reviewed, from time to 

 time, and may be changed, with notice.  Changes in amount will take effect upon the next 

 renewal of the Units Policy.   

 

5. No unit shall be occupied and used for any purpose other than as a private, single family 

residence, and no unit shall be occupied under a lease or license arrangement for transient 

or hotel purposes and no portion of the Unit shall be partitioned or subdivided for any 

other use or for multiple family use. 

 

 

SECTION X – TRANSIENT AND COMMERICAL  

                            USE OF UNITS 
 

1. No residential unit or part of a residential unit shall be used for any “transient” or 

 “commercial” use, including, without limiting the general meaning of these terms, any of 

 the following: 

 

 a. the carrying on of a business; 

 

 b. hotel or boarding or lodging house use; 

 

c. the disposition of an Owner’s or tenant’s right to occupy the Owner’s unit 

whereby the party or parties acquiring such interest or right is or are entitled to 

use or occupy the unit on a transient use basis or under any arrangement 

commonly known as time sharing; or 

 

d. any use, occupancy, or lease by persons other than the registered owner with the 

exception of bona fides guests of the Owner or lease, for a term of less than one 
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(1) year or which is terminable prior to the expiry of such term, including without 

limitation the leasing through “Airbnb” or similar services. 

 

2. All tenancies for units shall be in writing. 

 

3. Within 30 days of the lease or renewal of lease for any individual unit or part of a 

 residential unit, the Owner shall: 

  

 a. notify the Corporation in writing that the unit has been leased; 

 

b. provide the Corporation with the lessee’s name, the owner’s address and a copy of 

the lease or renewal or a summary of it in the prescribed form pursuant to the Act. 

 

c. provide the lessee with a copy of the Declaration, By-Laws and Rules of the 

Corporation; and 

 

d. complete and execute any undertaking and/or information sheet as may be 

provided by the Corporation and ensure that all lessees complete and execute any 

undertaking and/or information sheet as may be provided by the Corporation. 

 

4. If a lease of a residential unit or a part of a residential unit is terminated and not renewed, 

 the Owner shall notify the Corporation in writing of same within seven (7) days of the 

 termination. 

 

5. For the sake of clarity and without limiting the generality of the Rules respecting 

 transient use of Units, in the event that a unit is leased to a corporation, partnership or 

 other legal entity, the occupants of the unit shall be considered tenants for the purposes of 

 these Rules and a change in the occupants of the unit shall be treated as a tenant taking 

 possession of the unit pursuant to a new lease that must comply with these Rules. 

 

6. No tenant may assign a lease in whole or in part.  A unit owner may not consent to an 

 assignment, unless the assignment will comply with these Rules. 

 

7. No tenant may sublease the unit in whole or in part. 

 

8. Each of the provisions of these Rules respecting transient use of units shall be deemed to 

 be independent and severable and the invalidity or unenforceability in whole or in part of 

 any one or more of such provisions shall not be deemed to impair or affect in any manner 

 the validity or enforceability of the remainder of the provisions of these Rules.  
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SECTION XI - AMENITIES 
 

Billiard & Ping Pong Rooms 

 

1. The Billiard Room and Ping Pong Room located in each building are available for use 

from 9:00 am to 10:00 pm daily.  Use of the Billiard/Ping Pong Room must be arranged 

for with the Management Office. 

 

2. Guests and children under the age of 16 years must be accompanied by an adult Owner at 

all times during their use of the billiard and ping pong rooms. 

 

Hobby Rooms/Lounges/Bicycle Rooms 

 

3. The Hobby Room in each building is under the control of a Hobby Club for each 

building. Owners wishing to use the Hobby Room and equipment must be members of 

the Hobby Club for the room they wish to use and may obtain a key through the Hobby 

Club. 

 

4. Owners using the Hobby Room must do so at their own risk and must sign a Waiver 

form.  Owners are cautioned that the equipment can be dangerous and that they must use 

safe handling procedures for all equipment located within the Hobby Rooms.  Owners 

who have not signed a Waiver form and use the Hobby Room are considered to be 

unauthorized users of the equipment. 

 

5. The lounges in each building are available for use from 9:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. daily.  

Guests and children under the age of 16 years must be accompanied by an adult Owner at 

all times during their use of the lounges. Use of the lounges must be arranged for with the 

Management Office. 

 

6. The bicycle storage rooms are for storage of bicycles only.  Car tires or any items other 

than bicycles may not be stored in the bicycle rooms.  Owners storing such items will be 

provided with ninety (90) days’ notice to remove unauthorized items from the bicycle 

rooms.  Failure to comply with the removal of the items will result in the removal of such 

items by the Corporation. 

 

Multi-Purpose Room 

 

7. Use of the Multi-Purpose Room must be arranged for with the Management Office. 

 

Bikes, Rollerblades and Skateboards 

 

8. Bicycles shall be walked, not ridden, in a safe manner in the outdoor and underground 

parking areas and the garage ramp.  

 

9. Bicycles may only be ridden in a direct line between the streets and the top of the access 

ramp to the underground parking areas or the bicycle rack at the back of 60 Inverlochy 
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Blvd. building. In doing so, the bicycles shall be ridden in a safe manner in accordance 

with designated entry and exit routes for vehicular traffic and shall not obstruct those 

routes. 

 

10. Bicycles shall not be brought into the buildings except for the purpose of being stored in 

the designated bicycle room or in the bicycle racks located at the back of the buildings. 

Bicycles are not permitted in the elevators or stairwells and may not be stored on 

Balconies, or anywhere on the Common Elements other than the designated locations. 

 

11. Rollerblades and skateboards shall not be used anywhere on the Common Elements, 

inside or outside the buildings. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Owners of
The Orchard Club

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Orchard Club which comprise the statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2018, and the statements of revenue, expenses and operating fund, contingency fund,
recreation fund, reserve fund for major repairs and replacements and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of The
Orchard Club as at December 31, 2018 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the organization in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Condominium Act of Ontario

The Orchard Club has not completed a reserve fund study and has not issued a notice of future funding of the reserve
fund to the owners within the prescribed time from the date of the last study as required by the Condominium Act of
Ontario.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the organization's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the organization or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the organization's financial reporting process.

2.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or

error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement

resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

organization’s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates

and related disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may

cast significant doubt on the organization’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures

in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the organization to cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,

and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

March 8, 2019 YalePGC, LLP
Richmond Hill, Ontario Chartered Professional Accountants

Licensed Public Accountants
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THE ORCHARD CLUB

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017

ASSETS

OPERATING
  Cash $ 22,562 $ 10,989
  Accounts receivable - other - 8,183
  Prepaid expenses 3,580 3,121

26,142 22,293

RESERVE
  Cash 122,462 43,413
  Investments 278,355 277,228
  Interest receivable 3,318 483

404,135 321,124

$ 430,277 $ 343,417

See accompanying notes. 4.



THE ORCHARD CLUB

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017

LIABILITIES

OPERATING
  Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 11,522 $ 13,594
  Due to York Condominium Corporation No. 97 - 2
  Due to York Condominium Corporation No. 166 - 138
  Due to York Condominium Corporation No. 300 - 4

11,522 13,738

FUND BALANCES

CONTINGENCY FUND 16,652 16,816

RESERVE FUND FOR MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS 402,103 312,863

418,755 329,679

$ 430,277 $ 343,417

APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE COMMITTEE:

________________________________ Member

________________________________ Member

________________________________ Member

See accompanying notes. 5.



THE ORCHARD CLUB

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND OPERATING FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2018 2017
BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL

REVENUE
  Common element assessments $ 358,275 $ 358,275 $ 371,975
  Less: Budgeted transfer to reserve fund for

major repairs and replacements (97,875) (97,875) (95,025)

260,400 260,400 276,950
  Other income (recreation programs) - 4,055 -

260,400 264,455 276,950

EXPENSES - see Schedule
  Service and maintenance contracts 148,700 151,816 136,444
  Repairs and maintenance 19,700 15,404 21,008
  Utilities 68,000 67,268 62,614
  Recreational facilities 5,200 12,423 5,966
  Administration 18,800 17,708 17,374
  Special projects - - 90,029

260,400 264,619 333,435

(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES $ - (164) (56,485)

OPERATING FUND, BEGINNING OF YEAR - -

TRANSFER FROM CONTINGENCY FUND 164 56,485

OPERATING FUND, END OF YEAR $ - $ -

See accompanying notes. 6.



THE ORCHARD CLUB

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2018 2017
BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL

SERVICE AND MAINTENANCE CONTRACTS
  Air conditioning and heating $ 2,200 $ 1,607 $ 2,051
  Cleaning 27,000 28,249 25,793
  Elevator 1,600 1,800 1,500
  Landscaping and snow removal 6,500 8,187 7,260
  Management fees 110,000 110,782 98,767
  Pest control 700 615 497
  Waste removal 700 576 576

148,700 151,816 136,444

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE
  Air conditioning and heating 2,000 2,789 1,644
  Cleaning supplies 4,000 5,703 6,185
  Electrical 3,500 - 1,469
  Fire equipment 1,000 763 539
  General building 8,000 6,149 10,285
  Plumbing 1,200 - 886

19,700 15,404 21,008

UTILITIES
  Gas 5,000 4,836 4,053
  Hydro 58,000 58,467 53,805
  Water 5,000 3,965 4,756

68,000 67,268 62,614

RECREATIONAL FACILITIES
 Pool repairs 1,500 1,897 3,011
 Recreation equipment 2,700 4,445 1,921
 Recreation programs - 4,934 -
 Sauna repairs 1,000 1,147 1,034

$ 5,200 $ 12,423 $ 5,966

See accompanying notes. 7.



THE ORCHARD CLUB

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2018 2017
BUDGET ACTUAL ACTUAL

ADMINISTRATION
  Audit fees $ 2,900 $ 3,164 $ 2,825
  General office and meetings 5,500 4,098 5,340
  Insurance 7,000 7,319 6,644
  Professional fees 1,000 848 -
  Telephone 2,400 2,279 2,565

$ 18,800 $ 17,708 $ 17,374

See accompanying notes. 8.



THE ORCHARD CLUB

STATEMENT OF CONTINGENCY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017

BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 16,816 $ 76,618

TRANSFER TO OPERATING FUND (164) (56,485)

TRANSFER TO OWNER CORPORATIONS - (5,201)

TRANSFER FROM RECREATION FUND - 1,884

BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 16,652 $ 16,816

STATEMENT OF RECREATION FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017

BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ - $ 2,099

TRANSFER TO CONTINGENCY FUND - (1,884)

REVENUES DERIVED FROM RECREATIONAL ACTIVITIES - 2,113

EXPENSES INCURRED ON RECREATIONAL ACTIVITIES  - (2,328)

BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ - $ -

See accompanying notes. 9.



THE ORCHARD CLUB

STATEMENT OF RESERVE FUND FOR MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017

BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR $ 312,863 $ 238,030

BUDGETED TRANSFER FROM OPERATING FUND 97,875 95,025

INTEREST EARNED 3,963 1,173

414,701 334,228

CHARGES DURING THE YEAR
  Dry-O-Tron repairs 4,910 -
  Replacement of gym rquipment  4,248 -
  Basketball backboard replacement 1,396 -
  Tennis court repairs 1,078 -
  Pool repairs 966 -
  Gym glass replacement - 10,291
  Fire system valve repairs - 4,746
  Consulting on reserve fund projects - 3,729
  Flooring refurbishment - 2,599

12,598 21,365

BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 402,103 $ 312,863

See accompanying notes. 10.



THE ORCHARD CLUB

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

2018 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING AND RESERVE ACTIVITIES
  (Deficiency) of revenue over expenses $ (164) $ (56,485)
  Transfer from contingency fund   164 56,485
  Net change in non-cash working capital
     Accounts receivable 5,348 (8,310)
     Prepaid expenses (459) (137)
     Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (2,072) 2,831
     Due to York Condominium Corporation No. 97 (2) -
     Due to York Condominium Corporation No. 166 (138) 10,138
     Due to York Condominium Corporation No. 300 (4) -

Cash flows provided by operating and reserve activities 2,673 4,522

CASH FLOWS FROM RESERVE AND OTHER FUND ACTIVITIES
  Budgeted transfer from operating fund 97,875 95,025
  Charges to the fund (12,598) (21,365)
  Interest earned on reserve funds 3,963 1,173
  Recreation fund (net) - (2,099)
  Contingency fund (net) (164) (59,802)

Cash flows provided by reserve and other fund activities 89,076 12,932

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Purchase of investments (1,127) (201,047)

  Cash flows (used in) investing activities (1,127) (201,047)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH RESOURCES 90,622 (183,593)

CASH RESOURCES, BEGINNING OF YEAR 54,402 237,995

CASH RESOURCES, END OF YEAR $ 145,024 $ 54,402

Represented by:
  Cash

Operating fund $ 22,562 $ 10,989
Reserve fund 122,462 43,413

$ 145,024 $ 54,402

See accompanying notes. 11.



THE ORCHARD CLUB

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE 1 OPERATIONS

York Condominium Corporation No. 97, York Condominium Corporation No. 166 and York
Condominium Corporation No. 300 have entered into a reciprocal agreement to form The Orchard
Club.  The agreement provides for the mutual use, maintenance and cost sharing of the recreation
centre which includes the gymnasium, swimming pool, sauna areas, showers, change rooms,
washrooms, tennis and shuffle board area, exercise room, card room, north lawn area and patio.  

These costs are being shared in the following ratios:

York Condominium Corporation No. 97   25%
York Condominium Corporation No. 166   25%
York Condominium Corporation No. 300   50%

100%

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting
standards for not-for-profit organizations. The significant policies are:

Common elements

The common elements of The Orchard Club are owned proportionately by the unit owners and,
consequently, are not reflected as assets in these financial statements.

Contingency fund

The Orchard Club has established a contingency fund to fund future unbudgeted expenditures.

Reserve fund for major repairs and replacements

The Orchard Club, as required by the Condominium Act of Ontario, has established a reserve fund
for financing major repairs and replacements of the common elements.  Charges to the fund
require approval by the Board of Directors.  Only major repairs and replacements of the common
elements are charged directly to this reserve.

Minor repairs and replacements are charged to repairs and maintenance in the general operations.

Revenue recognition

Contributions from the owner corporations are recognized as revenue monthly based on the
Shared Facilities Agreement. Interest and other revenues are recognized as revenue of the related
fund when earned.

12.



THE ORCHARD CLUB

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Contributed services

Directors, committee members and owners volunteer their time to assist in The Orchard Club
activities. These services materially benefit The Orchard Club, however a reasonable estimate of
the time spent and its fair market value cannot be made and accordingly, these contributed
services are not recognized in the financial statements.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations, requires management and directors to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of asset increases and
decreases during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 3 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Orchard Club's financial instruments primarily consist of cash, investments, receivables and
accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of potential loss caused by fluctuations in fair value of future cash flow
of financial instruments due to changes in market interest rates. The Orchard Club is exposed to
this risk through its interest bearing investments. The Orchard Club manages this risk by investing
in fixed-rate securities of short and medium term maturity and plans to hold the securities to
maturity.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential for financial loss should a counter-party in a transaction fail to meet its
obligations. The Orchard Club places its operating and reserve cash and investments with high
quality institutions and believes its exposure is not significant. 

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that The Orchard Club will not be able to meet its obligations as they
become due. The Orchard Club manages this risk by establishing budgets and funding plans and
by levying sufficient owners' assessments to fund its operating expenses, debt payments and
necessary contributions to the reserve and other funds.

13.



THE ORCHARD CLUB

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2018

NOTE 4 BUDGET FIGURES

The 2018 budget figures as presented are for information purposes only and are not covered by
the audit report of Yale PGC, LLP dated March 8, 2019.

NOTE 5 RESERVE FUND STUDY

The members of The Orchard Club have used a reserve fund study update from Norman Lee &
Associates Ltd. dated November 24, 2015 and such other information available to them in
evaluating the adequacy of annual contributions to the reserve fund for major repairs and
replacements. The Orchard Club's plan for contribution to the reserve fund for 2018 was $97,875
and the plan for expenditures from the reserve fund for 2018 was $219,151. The study projected a
reserve fund balance on December 31, 2018 of $171,151.

The reserve is evaluated on the basis of expected repair and replacement costs and life
expectancy of the common elements and assets of The Orchard Club.  Such evaluation is based
on numerous assumptions as to future events.

The Orchard Club has not completed a reserve fund study and has not issued a notice of future
funding of the reserve fund to the owners within the prescribed time from the date of the last study
as required by the Condominium Act of Ontario.

14.
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THORNHILL ORCHARDS 
York Condominium Corporation No. 300 

 

 

July 30,2019 

 

 

Dear Unit Owner: 
 
 
The Board of Directors and Management have designed this Suite Renovation 
Guide for owners to better understand their responsibilities and to protect our 
investments at YCC 300.  
 
The specific requirements must be met in order for suite renovations to be 
approved by Management.  
 
The document will prove very useful for contractors and others who are hired to 
do the suite renovations.  
 
Owners MUST take responsibility for their suite renovations, and MUST follow all 
the YCC 300 Rules and Regulations while the renovations are taking place. 
 
For your review, the following agreements are attached: 
 
►  Hard Flooring Renovation Agreement 
►  Kitchen/Bathroom/General Renovations Agreement 
► Removal of Concrete Step Agreement  
► Elevator Booking Agreement 
 
 Please note that these agreements must be carefully read, thoroughly understood 
and followed to the letter to meet the guidelines.  
 
If you do not abide by the enclosed guidelines, you will receive a letter from 
Management, and if necessary legal action may take place. 
 
 
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact the 
Management Office at (905) 881-3368. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
50 & 60 Inverlochy Blvd, Thornhill, Ontario L3T 4T6 

Phone: 905-881-3368  Fax: 905-881-3753 Email: ycc300@rogers.coom 
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Overview 
 

Purpose  
 

This guide has been prepared to provide owners with guidance and information 
when considering renovations to their suites.  

Adherence to Policy 
 
All policies and procedures must be adhered to regardless of the renovation 
project and all required documentation must be submitted prior to 
commencement of work. If your renovation requires a building permit issued by 
the Town of Markham, no work may commence until such permit is received by 
the owner and a copy provided to Management. 

Building Permit 
 

Under the Ontario Building Code Act you MUST have a building permit to 
construct, demolish, renovate, alter, install or change the use of a building. 
Construction may not proceed until a building permit has been issued. Additional 
information is available at www.markham.ca or by calling (905) 477-5530. The 
homeowner is required to apply; contractors can apply on behalf of homeowner. 

The following are some simple guidelines to help assist you in determining when 
you should be obtaining a permit for your renovations. This is not to be 
considered a complete list and you as an owner are responsible for verification 
as to whether a permit is required.  
 

HVAC & PLUMBING 
 
A permit is required whenever renovations will ‘alter’ the existing venting 
and/or plumbing in a suite.  
 
Example, a kitchen is being remodeled and the sink is relocated to a 
corner sink but is still tied into the same main drain, because the 
configuration of the drain to the outlet pipe has changed, this would 
require a permit. If the sink remains in the same location with no change to 
how it is tied in, then no permit would be required.  
 
ELECTRICAL 
 
A building permit is not required when changing/altering electrical, 
however, the licensed electrician should be applying (owners should never 
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apply for these) for an ESA PERMIT (Electrical Safety Authority) who will 
inspect the work at completion.  
 
DEMOLITION & ADDITION 
 
As we have no load bearing walls within our suites, no permit is required 
to remove/add any walls; however, if the wall contains any plumbing, 
HVAC, telephone wiring or electrical that will be altered by the work, then 
a permit is required. The same goes for adding new walls if the plan calls 
for any electrical, HVAC or plumbing to be run through the wall.  
 
A permit is not required for these types of renovations: 

• Flooring 

• Painting 

• Installation of kitchen and/or bathroom cabinets (however, if the 
new cabinets required any change to electrical, plumbing or venting 
a permit is required) 

• General cosmetic work i.e. crown molding 
 

Damage Security Deposit 
 
A refundable deposit against damage must be submitted by cheque payable to 
YCC 300 for a Minor Renovation which includes and is limited to one of the 
following; a bathroom, a kitchen, flooring, single room alteration with change to 
partitions in the amount of $500 and a Major Renovation which includes any two 
minor renovations performed either concurrently or contiguously in the amount of 
$1,000. 

General Rules 
 

1. All work involving common elements must be approved by the Board of 
Directors and Management prior to commencement. Detailed 
specifications and drawings, if required, must be submitted together with 
application for approval. 

 
2. Load bearing supports may not be structurally altered. 

 
3. Contractors are not allowed to alter base building connections. Alterations 

must be submitted to the Management Office and they must accompany 
an engineer design and review prior to commencement. 
 

4. All contractors are required to park in Visitors parking area or on the 
street. Contractors should not leave vehicles unattended behind either of 
the buildings unless arrangements have been made with Management. 
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5. All contractors are required to report to the Management office each time 
that they are on site.  
 

6. Noisy activities involving hammering, drilling, sanding etc. must be 
confined to weekdays (Monday to Friday) between 9:00 am and 5:00 pm 
only. 

 
7. All electrical and plumbing work must be carried out by properly licensed 

trades that carry adequate liability insurance and WSIB coverage.  
 

a. “Plumbing work” is defined as work that involves soldering water 
pipes or drains and must be undertaken by a licensed person. 

 
8. All work must be carried out by properly licensed trades that carry 

adequate liability insurance and WSIB coverage. 
 

9. Heating/air conditioning grills and duct vents must be sealed (plastic 
cover) to prevent dust pollution to heating/cooling coils and ducts. 

 
10. Access must be given to the Corporation’s authorized representatives   

when deemed necessary and a full suite inspection will take place after 
each renovation has occurred. All aspects of the suite will be inspected 
but particular attention will be paid to compliance with the Ontario Building, 
Plumbing and Electrical Codes. 

 
11. All materials and tools must be brought into the building via the service 

elevator from the rear of the building. Under no circumstances may 
materials be transported through the front or rear lobbies. For this reason, 
it is advisable that you check dates with the Management Office to ensure 
that there are no major moves booked for the day(s) that you anticipate 
the contractors will unload/transport materials. This applies to the removal 
of debris from the suite.  

 
12. No debris or materials is to be stored in the corridors at any time. If it is, 

staff may remove it and charge back time spent to the unit owner against 
the deposit. 

 
13. All construction materials/debris (furniture, vanities, cupboards, 

appliances, drywall, wood etc) must be removed from the site by the 
contractor to municipal dumping facilities designated to receive 
construction materials. Contractors by pre-arrangement, may have their 
own refuse bin placed on the property in a spot approved by the 
Management Office but such a bin may not be on the property for a period 
exceeding three (3) business days. 

 
14. Sawing/Cutting of any type of material is not allowed on the balcony. 

Sawing/Cutting is allowed within the owner’s suite or with Management 
approval, at the rear of the building. Sawdust must not be disposed of 
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down the garbage chute due to fire and explosion hazards. Any cutting 
completed on the balcony that might damage the waterproof 
membrane is strictly forbidden. Any damages to the waterproof 
membrane of the balcony as a result of cutting/sawing will be 
repaired by the Corporation’s contractor and the cost will be charged 
back to the suite owner. 

 
15. A floor plan indicating the floor areas being changed from carpet to hard 

flooring or approved hard flooring to new hard flooring must be submitted 
along with the HARD FLOOR RENOVATION agreement. A sample is 
provided in this guide.  

 
16. Wood and wood laminate floating floors may be installed provided that 

there is a sound-absorbing underlay with a minimum Impact Insulation 
Class (IIC) Rating of 70 under the hardwood or laminate. Manufacturer’s 
test results on sound transmission for the proposed underlay must be 
submitted with this form. Styrofoam types of sound-deadening underlay 
are not permitted as the acoustical properties decline over time. The 
specification for the underlay and a small sample of the underlay 
must be submitted with the HARD FLOOR RENOVATION agreement. 

 
a. A gap of ¼ inch must be left around the perimeter of each room 

and sealant applied between the floor and wall to provide an air 
barrier and assist in the control of noise transmission. 

 
17. Ceramic or stone flooring will only be permitted in limited areas of the 

suite, such as the vestibule, kitchen or bathrooms, provided that it is 
covered by area carpeting or runners in traffic areas and that felt 
protectors are installed and maintained on the feet of any moveable 
furniture to prevent transmission of furniture-dragging noises. We 
encourage the use of sound-deadening mastics in the installation of 
ceramic and stone flooring. 

 
18. Any signs of mould when the old flooring material is removed must be 

reported to the Management Office. 
 

19. Renovations other than for flooring must be submitted to Management via 
use of the KITCHEN / BATHROOM / GENERAL RENOVATION 
agreement. A sample is provided in this guide.  

 
20. Where renovations are for kitchen cabinetry, access must be maintained 

to the dryer in-wall lint trap and the exhaust fan motor. 
 

21. Owners, Renovators and other Trades may undertake small replacement 
jobs which involve CSA approved screw-on fittings (kitchen/bathroom 
faucets and drain pipes) provided the work takes place on the Owner’s 
side of the Unit boundary and not on the riser side (behind masonry wall) 
of the shut-off valve. A test of the shut-off valve should be undertaken first 
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to ensure and confirm proper function. SHUT OFF VALVES MAY ONLY 
BE CHANGED BY A CORPORATION-APPROVED, LICENSED 
PLUMBER, and, since they involve shutting down a riser while the work is 
being performed, the Corporation may require a 48 – 92 hour notice 
period to advise owners whose units may be affected. 

 
22. No shower and/or bath tub may be installed in an en-suite bathroom that 

originally was constructed with said fixture and in addition no fixture may 
be added to either one of the bathrooms. Fixtures are in the context of a 
bidet, hip-bath, footbath, additional hand basin or similar device. 

 
23. The use of gypsum board finishes with cellulose backing and “Green 

Board” gypsum finishes in washrooms are prohibited. Acceptable 
materials are as follows: Georgia Pacific Densglass or DensArmor or 
Cement Board. 

 
24. Washroom lights must be hard-wired with the exhaust fan at the time of 

renovations such that the fan is activated when the light turns on. 
 

25. The use of standard gypsum board finishes is discouraged. Where 
possible, the use of Georgia Pacific Densglass or DensArmor is 
recommended. 

 
26. Any signs of mould must be reported to the Management Office. 

 
 

27. Inspection check list will be filled out by Management and it will be signed 
by applicant. 

Personal Courtesies 
 

All owners/contractors need to understand that renovations are a disruption to 
other owners and should at all times be cognizant of this. Contractors should be 
informed by owners that they should at all time conduct themselves in a 
professional and courteous manner when on site.   

Agreements 
 

Hard Flooring Renovation Agreement…………………………………Pages 8-9 
Kitchen/Bathroom/General Renovations Agreement…...……………Pages 10-11 
Removal of Concrete Step at Balcony or Patio Doors……………… Pages 12-13 
Elevator Reservation Agreement……………………………………… Pages 14-15 
Inspection Checklist……………………………………………………...Page 16 
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THORNHILL ORCHARDS 

YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 300 

 

HARD FLOORING RENOVATION 

 

APPLICATION BEING MADE BY: SUITE __________   BUILDING    50    60 

 

AREA TO BE CHANGED TO HARD FLOORING: ________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

NAME OF CONTRACTOR: ____________________________________________________ 

 

CONTRACTOR’S INSURANCE: ________________________________________________ 

           Company Name, Policy No., Expiry Date, Amount 

 

CONTRACTOR’S WSIB: ______________________________________________________ 

 

Please attach a copy of the suite floor plan indicating the areas to be converted to hard flooring. Floor 

Plans are available at the Management Office. 

 

1. A refundable deposit against damage must be submitted by cheque payable to YCC 300 for a 

Minor Renovation which includes one of a bathroom, a kitchen, flooring, single room 

alteration with change to partitions in the amount of $500 and a Major Renovation which 

includes any two minor renovations performed either concurrently or contiguously in the 

amount of $1,000. 

 

2. All work involving common elements must be approved by the Board of Directors and 

Management prior to commencement. Detailed specifications and drawings, if required, must 

be submitted together with application for approval. 

 

3. A floor plan indicating the floor areas being changed from carpet to hard flooring or approved 

hard flooring to new hard flooring must be submitted with this form. 

 

4. All work must be carried out by properly licensed trades that carry adequate liability 

insurance and WSIB coverage. 

 

5. Heating/air conditioning grills and duct vents must be sealed (plastic cover) to prevent dust 

pollution to heating/cooling coils and ducts. 

 

6. Access must be given to the Corporation’s authorized representatives when deemed necessary 

and a full suite inspection will take place after the hard flooring renovation has occurred. 

 

7. All materials and tools must be brought into the building via the service elevator from the rear 

of the building. Under no circumstances may materials be transported through the front or rear 

lobbies. For this reason, it is advisable that you check dates with the Management Office to 

ensure that there are no major moves booked for the day(s) that you anticipate the contractors 

will unload/transport materials. This applies to the removal of debris from the suite.  

 

8. No debris or materials is to be stored in the corridors at any time. If it is, staff may remove it 

and charge back time spent to the unit owner against the deposit. 
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9. All construction materials/debris (furniture, vanities, cupboards, appliances, drywall, wood 

etc) must be removed from the site by the contractor to municipal dumping facilities 

designated to receive construction materials. Contractors by pre-arrangement, have their own 

refuse bin placed on the property in a spot approved by the Management Office but such a bin 

may not be on the property for a period exceeding three (3) business days. 

 

10. Noisy activities involving hammering, drilling etc. must be confined to weekdays (Monday to 

Friday) between 9:00 am and 5:00 pm only. 

 

11. Sawdust must not be disposed of down the garbage chute due to fire and explosion hazards. 

 

12. Any signs of mould when the old flooring material is removed must be reported to the 

Management Office. 

 

WOOD AND WOOD LAMINATE FLOORING 

 

13. Wood and wood laminate floating floors may be installed provided that there is a sound-

absorbing underlay with a minimum  Impact Insulation Class (IIC) Rating of 70 under the 

hardwood or laminate. Manufacturer’s test results on sound transmission for the proposed 

underlay must be submitted with this form. Styrofoam types of sound-deadening underlay are 

not permitted as the acoustical properties decline over time. The specification for the 

underlay and a small sample of the underlay must be submitted with this agreement. 

 

14. A gap of ¼ inch must be left around the perimeter of each room and sealant applied between 

the floor and wall to provide an air barrier and assist in the control of noise transmission. 

 

CERAMIC AND STONE FLOORING  

 

15. Ceramic or stone flooring will only be permitted in limited areas of the suite, such as the 

vestibule, kitchen or bathrooms, provided that it is covered by area carpeting or runners in 

traffic areas and that felt protectors are installed and maintained on the feet of any moveable 

furniture to prevent transmission of furniture-dragging noises. We encourage the use of 

sound-deadening mastics in the installation of ceramic and stone flooring. 

 

 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

YORK CONDOMINIUM CORP. No. 300   I/WE ACCEPT THE ABOVE 

CONDITIONS. 

   

 

________________________________  ______________________________ 

Property Manager     Owner’s Signature 

        

      Suite ___________   [    ] 50 Inverlochy 

Date:_____________________     [    ] 60 Inverlochy 

 

 
      Telephone:    
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THORNHILL ORCHARDS 

YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 300 

 

KITCHEN/BATHROOM/GENERAL RENOVATIONS 

 

APPLICATION BEING MADE BY: SUITE ________  BUILDING  50  60 

 

AREA TO BE RENOVATED:  __________________________________________________ 

 

RENOVATIONS TO BE DONE (Use separate page if necessary)_______________________ 

 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

NAME OF  CONTRACTOR: ____________________________________________________ 

 

CONTRACTOR’S INSURANCE: ________________________________________________ 

     Company Name, Policy No., Expiry Date, Amount 

 

CONTRACTOR’S WSIB: _______________________________________________________ 

 

1. A refundable deposit against damage must be submitted by cheque payable to YCC 300 for a 

Minor Renovation which includes one of a bathroom, a kitchen, flooring, single room 

alteration with change to partitions in the amount of $500 and a Major Renovation which 

includes any two minor renovations performed either concurrently or contiguously in the 

amount of $1,000. 

 

2. All work involving common elements must be approved by the Board of Directors and 

Management prior to commencement. Detailed specifications and drawings, if required, must 

be submitted together with application for approval. 

 

3. Load bearing walls may not be structurally altered. 

 

4. All electrical and plumbing work must be carried out by properly licensed trades that carry 

adequate liability insurance and WSIB coverage. 

 

5. Where renovations are for kitchen cabinetry, access must be maintained to the dryer in-wall 

lint trap and the exhaust fan motor. 

 

6. No shower stall may be installed in the en-suite bathroom and no fixture may be added to 

either one of the bathrooms. Fixtures are in the context of a bidet, hip-bath, footbath, 

additional hand basin or similar device. 

 

7. “Plumbing work” is defined as work that involves soldering water pipes or drains and must be 

undertaken by a licensed person. 

 

8. Owners, Renovators and other Trades may undertake small replacement jobs which involve 

CSA approved screw-on fittings (kitchen/bathroom faucets and drain pipes) provided the 

work takes place on the Owner’s side of the Unit boundary and not on the riser side (behind 

masonry wall) of the shut-off valve. A test of the shut-off valve should be undertaken first to 

ensure and confirm proper function. SHUT OFF VALVES MAY ONLY BE CHANGED BY 

A CORPORATION-APPROVED, LICENSED PLUMBER, and, since they involve shutting 

down a riser while the work is being performed, the Corporation may require a 48 – 92 hour 

notice period to advise owners whose units may be affected. 

 

9. For general renovation (plastering, dry walling etc), all heating/air conditioning grilles and 

duct vents must be sealed (plastic cover) to prevent dust pollution to heating/cooling coils and 

ducts. 
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10. Access must be given to the Corporation’s authorized representatives when deemed necessary 

and a full suite inspection will take place after each renovation has occurred. All aspects of 

the suite will be inspected but particular attention will be paid to compliance with the Ontario 

Building, Plumbing and Electrical Codes. 

 

11. All materials and tools must be brought into the building via the service elevator from the rear 

of the building. Under no circumstances may materials be transported through the front or rear 

lobbies. For this reason, it is advisable that you check dates with the Management Office to 

ensure that there are no major moves booked for the day(s) that you anticipate the contractors 

will unload/transport materials. This applies to the removal of debris from the suite.  

 

12. No debris or materials is to be stored in the corridors at any time. If it is, staff may remove it 

and charge back time spent to the unit owner against the deposit. 

 

13. All construction materials/debris (furniture, vanities, cupboards, appliances, drywall, wood 

etc) must be removed from the site by the contractor to municipal dumping facilities 

designated to receive construction materials. Contractors by pre-arrangement, have their own 

refuse bin placed on the property in a spot approved by the Management Office but such a bin 

may not be on the property for a period exceeding three (3) business days. 

 

14. Noisy activities involving hammering, drilling etc. must be confined to weekdays (Monday to 

Friday) between 9:00 am and 5:00 pm only. 

 

15.  The use of gypsum board finishes with cellulose backing and “Green Board” gypsum finishes 

in washrooms are prohibited. Acceptable materials are as follows: Georgia Pacific Densglass 

or DensArmor or Cement Board. 

 

16. The use of standard gypsum board finishes is discouraged. Where possible, the use of Georgia 

Pacific Densglass or DensArmor is recommended. 

 

17. Washroom lights must be hard-wired with the exhaust fan at the time of renovations such that 

the fan is activated when the light turns on. 

 

18. Contractors are not allowed to alter base building connections. Alterations must be submitted 

to the Management Office and they must accompany an engineer design and review prior to 

commencement. 

 

19. Contractors are to use Low VOC paint at all times. 

 

20. Any signs of mould must be reported to the Management Office. 

 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

YORK CONDOMINIUM  

CORPORATION NO. 300    I/WE ACCEPT THE ABOVE 

CONDITIONS. 

 

________________________________  ______________________________ 

Board of Director     Owner’s Signature 

        

Date_____________________   Suite ___________  [    ] 50 Inverlochy 

           [    ] 60 Inverlochy 

 

________________________________  Telephone:    

       Property Manager 

 

       Date_____________________  
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THORNHILL ORCHARDS 

YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 300 

 

REMOVAL OF CONCRETE STEP AT BALCONY OR PATIO DOORS 

  

  

APPLICATION BEING MADE BY: SUITE ________  BUILDING  50  60 

 

 TO BE SCHEDULED DURING THE DOOR REPLACEMENT BY THE CORPORATION 

 

Please be advised that the Corporation will have the step removed at the time of the installation 

and a larger door will be installed. 

 

The cost of this step removal and increase in the size of door is $_______________________ 

 

Please be advised that the Corporation does not cover any interior repairs to the suite following 

this door replacement. Any repairs required to interior finishes are the responsibility of the unit 

owner to arrange and pay. 

 

I understand and acknowledge the above conditions of the step removal and attach my cheque, 

payable to YCC 300 in the amount indicated above. 

 

 

 

__________________________     ________________________ 

Signature        Date 

 

 

 STEP TO BE REMOVED BY OWNER UTILIZING THE EXISTING PATIO DOOR. 

 

If the step is being removed on an existing door without the door being replaced by the Corporation, 

the specifications below must be followed: 

 

NAME OF  CONTRACTOR: ____________________________________________________ 

 

CONTRACTOR’S INSURANCE: ________________________________________________ 

     Company Name, Policy No., Expiry Date, Amount 

 

CONTRACTOR’S WSIB: _______________________________________________________ 

 

Owners are permitted to remove the concrete balcony step on replacement doors only (brown frame 

exterior & white frame interior or white frame interior and exterior). Should an owner wish to remove the 

step of an original door (aluminum frames), the door must be evaluated by the Corporation to determine 

replacement schedule. 

 

1. All work involving common elements must be approved by the Board of Directors and 

Management prior to commencement. Detailed specifications and drawings, if required, must 

be submitted together with application for approval. 

 

2. Load bearing walls may not be structurally altered. 

 

3. All work must be carried out by properly licensed trades that carry adequate liability 

insurance and WSIB coverage. 
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4. Where the work requires the removal of an electrical baseboard heater, the work shall be done 

by a qualified professional electrician. 

 

5. Access must be given to the Corporation’s authorized representatives when deemed necessary 

during work in progress. 

 

6. All materials and tools must be brought into the building via the service elevator from the rear 

of the building. Under no circumstances may materials be transported through the front or rear 

lobbies. For this reason, it is advisable that you check dates with the Management Office to 

ensure that there are no major moves booked for the day(s) that you anticipate the contractors 

will unload/transport materials. This applies to the removal of debris from the suite. Please 

note that all construction materials must be removed from the site by the contractor to 

municipal dumping facilities designated to receive construction materials. 

 

7. Noisy activities involving hammering, drilling etc. must be confined to weekdays (Monday to 

Friday) between 9:00 am and 5:00 pm only. 

 

8. Concrete step to be removed from the balcony side, utilizing water to control dust. Water 

must be contained to the balcony and not allowed to run over the edge of the balcony. Plastic 

sheeting protection is advised for control of dust within suite. 

 

9. Door header to be replaced with a wooden box enclosure, filled with insulation and having a 

vapour barrier on the suite side of the insulation. Box to be sealed properly to the adjacent 

surfaces and exterior painted to match surrounding masonry. 

 

10. Slot in slab from removal of step to be filled with Styrofoam-type insulation. 

 

11. Door must be properly shimmed using outdoor grade plywood or high density polyethylene 

(preferred) to ensure that it is level and plumb. 

 

12. A minimum gap of ½ inch at the sides and top of the door and a ¼ inch gap at the sill of the 

door must be maintained after the door is level and plumb. Where gap exceeds ¾”, a suitable 

L-brake must be installed to cover gap. 

 

13. Cavities around the door to be filled with expanding foam insulation and, after stabilization of 

the insulation, a sealant is to be placed over the insulation to form a good bond between the 

structure and frame of the door. 

 

 

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

YORK CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 300      I/WE ACCEPT THE ABOVE 

CONDITIONS. 

 

 

________________________________  ______________________________ 

Board of Director     Owner’s Signature 

        

Date_____________________   Suite ___________  [    ] 50 Inverlochy 

           [    ] 60 Inverlochy 

 

________________________________  Telephone:    

       Property Manager 

 

       Date_____________________  
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Elevator Reservation Agreement 
York Condominium Corporation No. 300 

 

Reservation requested by ____________________________________________________________ 
    (Print first and last name) 
 
Suite # : _______________  Home # : ______________________  Cell # : ______________________ 
 

The reservation request is for 50  60  Inverlochy Blvd.  for the use of the service elevator for the 
purpose of:  
 

Full move-out        Cash deposit  Moving may take place during the following  
      times: 

Full move-in      Monday to Friday:  9:00am to 5:00pm 

Partial move          Saturday, Sunday & Holidays:  Not permitted 
 
Delivery        
__________________________________ 

 (name of delivery/moving company) 
 
The date and time of the reservation shall be: 
 
Date: __________________________  From ____________ to _____________ (Maximum 4 hours) 

 
I understand and agree to the following conditions: 
 

1. I shall deposit with the Corporation upon signing this agreement, a refundable security deposit in the amount of 
$500.00 payable to YCC 300.  This deposit will be returned upon completion of the post elevator inspection and 
not having caused any damage to the common elements of the Corporation. 

 
2. I shall notify the Superintendent and request an inspection of the elevator immediately prior to using the 

elevator. Upon completion of the move or delivery, I shall forthwith request a re-inspection of the elevator and 
affected common elements. See attached schedule 1. 

 
3. I shall be liable for the full cost of all repairs to any damage, which may occur as a result of the use of the 

elevator by my agents or me.  I shall accept the cost of repairs as assessed by the manager and acknowledge that 
all or part of the security deposit shall be withheld and applied towards the cost of repairs. 

 
4. I shall only use the elevator during the term of the reservation. 
 
5. I shall take reasonable precautions to prevent unauthorized entry into the building during the term of the 

reservation. 
 
6. I shall not obstruct corridors and elevator lobbies prior to, during or after the term of the reservation. 

 
7. All empty boxes & moving cartons are not to be stored for any duration on my balcony or common areas, nor are 

they to be tossed down the garbage chute.  I will bring them directly down to the recycling area for proper disposal. 
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8. I agree that special care will be taken and the PROTECTIVE PADS must be in place prior, during, and after and/or 
until completion of the final inspection. 

 
9. The Corporation will not be held liable for any costs pertaining to the delay, if any, in our receiving the elevator as 

booked above. 
 

I HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGE that I have read this agreement and I agree to abide by the rules of the Corporation in force from 
time to time. 

DATED at Thornhill   this_________ day of ____________ 20___.        ________________________ 

  Applicants Signature 

SCHEDULE 1 
Elevator Reservation Agreement

 
 

 Area Inspected  BEFORE AFTER 

Moving Room & Doors – All items removed, trash disposed of, damages to 
walls/doors etc. 
 

  

Elevator Doors/Frames – Scratches, dents   

Elevator Cab/Pads – Scratches, dents, mirrors, missing pads?   

Corridor Floor/Walls – Carpet stains, wall damage on suite level   

Light Fixtures – Damaged covers, broken fixtures on suite level   

Suite Door – Scratches, dents etc.   

 
BEFORE Inspection checked by:  
 
________________________     ____________________________ 
              Resident           Management/Superintendent 
 
 
AFTER Inspection checked by: 
 
________________________     ____________________________ 
              Resident           Management/Superintendent 
 
NOTES: 

________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________ 

 
I hereby acknowledge receiving my security deposit of $500.00. 
Signature: ___________________________________ 
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INSPECTION CHECKLIST 

 
 
 
 
 Date of inspection______________________ 

 

 Property Manager______________________ 

 

            

               

Areas inspectedꜞ          
                            YES   NO 
 

1. Floors – a. sample of underpadding received                 √     √
          

                    b. mandated gap of ¼ around perimeter of rooms                √         √ 

 
        c. ceramic floors to be used only in designated areas                 √          √ 

 

2. Kitchen – a. dryer in-wall lint trap and the exhaust fan motor              󠇯√         √ 

          

     b. fire rated drain pipes  

  

3. Bathrooms – a. usage of cement board/den shield for all shower walls   √        √ 

 

         b. exhaust fan hardwired together with light fixture      √         √ 

 

                    c. No shower stall and no fixtures added                        √         √ 
 

 

4. General -        a. removal of load bearing walls              √          √                                 

 

     b. heating/air conditioning grilles and duct vents sealedꜞꜞ    √      √ 

     

      c. balcony waterproof membrane        √       √    
 
 
 
 

__________________     __________________ 
Property Manager/Superintendent                                                               Applicant  
 
 
 
 
 

ꜞ Please circle one that applies 

ꜞꜞTo be inspected prior to beginning of renovation 
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